Enterprise Health Management Platform (eHMP)





U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs

Contents

| Chapter 1: Introduction to eHMP 1 |
|--|
| About eHMP1 |
| System Requirements1 |
| eHMP User Interface (UI)1 |
| eHMP Help1 |
| Online Help Feature1 |
| National Service Desk (NSD)1 |
| eHMP Help Resources2 |
| The Organization of this User Guide2 |
| Chapter 2: Getting Started |
| Logging into eHMP via IE 11 |
| Adding eHMP to Favorites in IE11 |
| Accessing eHMP using IE11 Favorites |
| Accessing eHMP through CPRS5 |
| Logging Out of eHMP6 |
| Manual Sign Out6 |
| Auto Sign Out |
| Chapter 3: Patient Selection Screen |
| About the Patient Selection Screen8 |
| Patient Search |
| My Site Search |
| Nationwide Search10 |
| Selecting a Patient11 |
| Accessing an Unrestricted Patient Record11 |
| Accessing a Restricted Patient Record12 |
| Accessing a Flagged Patient Record13 |
| Main Application Window15 |
| Chapter 4: The eHMP Header 16 |
| About the eHMP Header16 |

| | Patient Selection Button | . 16 |
|---|---|------|
| | My Workspace Button | . 16 |
| | User Information Dropdown | 17 |
| | Patient Photo | 17 |
| | Patient Demographics | 17 |
| | Patient Postings | . 19 |
| | Current Encounter | . 20 |
| | Care Team Information | . 20 |
| | Observations | . 21 |
| | Notes | . 21 |
| С | hapter 5: Global Timeline Date Filter | . 23 |
| | About the Global Timeline Date Filter | . 23 |
| | Using the Preset Date Ranges | . 24 |
| | Using the Custom Date Range | . 25 |
| | Using the All Events Timeline | . 25 |
| | Using the Timeline Summary | . 26 |
| С | hapter 6: Applet Views | . 28 |
| | Active & Recent Medications | . 28 |
| | Active & Recent Medications: Trend View | . 28 |
| | Active & Recent Medications: Summary View | . 29 |
| | Active & Recent Medications: Detail View | . 29 |
| | Allergies | . 30 |
| | Allergies: Trend View | . 30 |
| | Allergies: Summary View | . 31 |
| | Allergies: Expanded View | . 31 |
| | Allergies: Detail View | . 31 |
| | Appointments & Visits | . 32 |
| | Appointments & Visits: Summary View | . 33 |
| | Appointments & Visits: Expanded View | . 33 |
| | Appointments & Visits: Detail View | . 34 |
| | Clinical Reminders | . 34 |

| Clinical Reminders: Summary View | |
|---|----|
| Clinical Reminders: Expanded View | |
| Clinical Reminders: Detail View | |
| Community Health Summaries | |
| Community Health Summaries: Summary View | |
| Community Health Summaries: Expanded View | 37 |
| Community Health Summaries: Detail View | 37 |
| Conditions | |
| Conditions: Trend View | |
| Conditions: Summary View | |
| Conditions: Expanded View | |
| Conditions: Detail View | |
| Documents | |
| Documents: Summary View | |
| Documents: Expanded View | |
| Documents: Detail View | |
| Encounters | |
| Encounters: Trend View | 43 |
| Encounters: Detail View | 43 |
| Immunizations | |
| Immunizations: Trend View | |
| Immunizations: Summary View | |
| Immunizations: Expanded View | |
| Immunizations: Detail View | |
| Medications Review | |
| Medications Review: Expanded View | |
| Medications Review: Detail View | 50 |
| Narrative Lab Results | 51 |
| Narrative Lab Results: Summary View | 51 |
| Narrative Lab Results: Expanded View | |
| Narrative Lab Results: Detail View | |

| Numeric Lab Results | 53 |
|--------------------------------------|----|
| Numeric Lab Results: Trend View | 53 |
| Numeric Lab Results: Summary View | 54 |
| Numeric Lab Results: Expanded View | |
| Numeric Lab Results: Detail View | 55 |
| Orders | 56 |
| Orders: Summary View | 56 |
| Orders: Expanded View | 57 |
| Orders: Detail View | 57 |
| Reports | |
| Reports: Summary View | |
| Reports: Detail View | |
| Stacked Graphs | |
| Stacked Graphs: Expanded View | |
| Tasks | 60 |
| Timeline | 60 |
| Timeline: Summary View | 60 |
| Timeline: Expanded View | 61 |
| Timeline: Detail View | 61 |
| VistA Health Summaries | 62 |
| VistA Health Summaries: Summary View | 62 |
| VistA Health Summaries: Detail View | 63 |
| Vitals | 64 |
| Vitals: Trend View | 64 |
| Vitals: Summary View | 64 |
| Vitals: Expanded View | 65 |
| Vitals: Detail View | 65 |
| Chapter 7: Applet Features | |
| About Applets | |
| Refresh Button | |
| Online Help Button | |
| | |

| Filter Button | 68 |
|---------------------------------------|----|
| User-Defined Applet Filters | 68 |
| Maximize Applet Button | 69 |
| Minimize Applet Button | |
| Sortable Column Headers | |
| Manual Tile Sort | |
| Infobutton | 71 |
| Details Form Button | 71 |
| Quicklook Button | |
| Submenu Button | |
| Comment Indicators | 73 |
| Chapter 8: Workspaces | 74 |
| About Workspaces | 74 |
| Predefined Workspaces | 74 |
| Workspace Manager | 74 |
| Add a New Workspace | 75 |
| Workspace Filter | 75 |
| Default View | 76 |
| Workspace Title | 76 |
| Associated Conditions | 76 |
| Workspace Description | 77 |
| Duplicate Workspaces | 77 |
| Rearrange Workspace Listings | 77 |
| Delete Workspaces | |
| Preview Workspace | |
| Customize a New Workspace | |
| Launch Workspaces | 80 |
| Chapter 9: Other eHMP Features | 81 |
| Search Record Field | 81 |
| Patient Record Refresh and Status Bar | 81 |
| Chapter 10: Access Control | 83 |

| User Management Applet | |
|--------------------------------|----|
| Search Form | |
| The Users Table – Results View | |
| User Info Detail View | 89 |
| Alerts | |

Table of Figures

| Figure 2-1 eHMP Login Screen |
|--|
| Figure 2-2 Star Icon |
| Figure 2-3 Add a Favorite |
| Figure 2-4 Star Icon |
| Figure 2-5 Clicking the eHMP Link |
| Figure 2-6 eHMP Link on the CPRS Tools Menu6 |
| Figure 2-7 Sign Out Button on Header Dropdown6 |
| Figure 2-8 Auto Sign Out Warning Message7 |
| Figure 2-9 Inactivity Logout Message7 |
| Figure 3-1 Patient Selection Screen8 |
| Figure 3-2 General Patient Search8 |
| Figure 3-3 My Site/Clinics9 |
| Figure 3-4 My Site/Wards 10 |
| Figure 3-5 Nationwide Search 10 |
| Figure 3-6 Too Many Results Have Returned11 |
| Figure 3-7 Patient Detail Dialog11 |
| Figure 3-8 Patient Detail Dialog for Patient in Ward12 |
| Figure 3-9 Restricted Record Acknowledgement 12 |
| Figure 3-10 Confirm Selection of Restricted Patient Record |
| Figure 3-11 Confirm Selction of Flagged Patient Record14 |
| Figure 3-12 Main Application Window15 |
| Figure 4-1 The eHMP Header16 |
| Figure 4-2 Sign Out Option17 |
| Figure 4-3 Patient Photo (Example)17 |
| Figure 4-4 Patient Demographics17 |
| Figure 4-5 Patient Context |
| Figure 4-6 Expanded Patient Information18 |
| Figure 4-7 Postings lcons |

| Figure 4-8 Expanded Postings Information 19 |
|---|
| Figure 4-9 Current Encounter Details |
| Figure 4-10 Care Team Information |
| Figure 4-11 Detailed Care Team Information 21 |
| Figure 4-12 New Notes |
| Figure 5-1 Global Timeline Date Filter |
| Figure 5-2 Expanded Global Timeline Date Filter |
| Figure 5-3 Preset Date Ranges24 |
| Figure 5-4 Calendar Dropdown25 |
| Figure 5-5 All Events Timeline |
| Figure 5-6 Filter Button |
| Figure 5-7: Patient Activity Detail Dialog 27 |
| Figure 6-1 Active & Recent Medications Applet Trend View |
| Figure 6-2 Active & Recent Medications Applet Summary View |
| Figure 6-3 Active & Recent Medications Details Form Button |
| Figure 6-4 Active & Recent Medications Detail Dialog Box |
| Figure 6-5 Allergies Applet Trend View |
| Figure 6-6 Allergies Applet Summary View |
| Figure 6-7 Allergies Applet Expanded View |
| Figure 6-8 Allergy Detail Dialog Box 32 |
| Figure 6-9 Appointments & Visits Applet Summary View |
| Figure 6-10 Appointments & Visits Applet Expanded View |
| Figure 6-11 Detail Dialog |
| Figure 6-12 Clinical Reminders Applet Summary View |
| Figure 6-13 Clinical Reminders Applet Expanded View |
| Figure 6-14 Clinical Reminders Detail Dialog |
| Figure 6-15 Community Health Summaries Applet Summary View |
| Figure 6-16 Community Health Summaries Applet Expanded View |
| Figure 6-17 Community Health Summaries Detail Dialog |
| Figure 6-18 Conditions Applet Trend View |
| Figure 6-19 Conditions Applet Summary View |

| Figure 6-20 Conditions Applet Expanded View |
|---|
| Figure 6-21 Conditions Detail Dialog 40 |
| Figure 6-22 Documents Applet Summary View 41 |
| Figure 6-23 Documents Applet Expanded View 41 |
| Figure 6-24 Documents Detail Dialog 42 |
| Figure 6-25 Encounters Applet Trend View 43 |
| Figure 6-26 Encounters List in Trend View (Expanded) 43 |
| Figure 6-27 Encounters List Item Icons 44 |
| Figure 6-28 Encounters Detail Dialog 44 |
| Figure 6-29 Immunizations Applet Trend View |
| Figure 6-30 Detail of an Immunization in Trend View |
| Figure 6-31 Immunizations Applet Summary View |
| Figure 6-32 Immunizations Applet Expanded View |
| Figure 6-33 Immunization Detail Dialog 46 |
| Figure 6-34 Medications Review Outpatient Meds |
| Figure 6-35 Medications Review Outpatient Indicators |
| Figure 6-36 Medications Review Inpatient Meds50 |
| Figure 6-37 Medications Review Applet Detail View 51 |
| Figure 6-38 Narrative Lab Results Applet Summary View52 |
| Figure 6-39 Lab Results Applet Expanded View52 |
| Figure 6-40 Narrative Lab Results Detail Dialog 53 |
| Figure 6-41 Numeric Lab Results Applet Trend View54 |
| Figure 6-42 Numeric Lab Results Applet Summary View54 |
| Figure 6-43 Numeric Lab Results Applet Expanded View55 |
| Figure 6-44 Numeric Lab Results Detail Dialog56 |
| Figure 6-45 Orders Applet Summary View56 |
| Figure 6-46 Orders Applet Expanded View 57 |
| Figure 6-47 Orders Detail Dialog58 |
| Figure 6-48 Reports Applet Summary View58 |
| Figure 6-49 Reports Detail Dialog 59 |
| Figure 6-50 Stacked Graphs Applet Expanded View60 |

| Figure 6-51 Timeline Summary View61 |
|---|
| Figure 6-52 Timeline Expanded View61 |
| Figure 6-53 Timeline Detail View62 |
| Figure 6-54 VistA Health Summaries Summary View63 |
| Figure 6-55 VistA Health Summaries Detail View63 |
| Figure 6-56 Vitals Applet Trend View64 |
| Figure 6-57 Vitals Applet Summary View64 |
| Figure 6-58 Vitals Applet Expanded View65 |
| Figure 6-59 Vitals Detail Dialog66 |
| Figure 7-1 Applet Feature Icons |
| Figure 7-2 PDF Version of the eHMP User Guide68 |
| Figure 7-3: Filtered Applet69 |
| Figure 7-4: Filter Name |
| Figure 7-5 Tile Sorting |
| Figure 7-6 Manual Tile Sorting71 |
| Figure 7-7 Infobutton in the Immunizations Applet71 |
| Figure 7-8 Quicklook Button |
| Figure 7-9 Clicking Submenu Button to List Associated Workspaces |
| Figure 7-10 Comment Indicator73 |
| Figure 7-11 Detailed Comment Information73 |
| Figure 8-1 Workspace Manager Window75 |
| Figure 8-2 Workspace Title Field |
| Figure 8-3 Search Problems Field |
| Figure 8-4 Problems Search Results |
| Figure 8-5 Workspace Add Description Field77 |
| Figure 8-6 User-Defined Workspace Confirmation Message |
| Figure 8-7 Current Screen View in the User Defined Workspace Window |
| Figure 8-8 Select a View |
| Figure 8-9 Using Double Arrows to Modify Applet Size |
| Figure 9-1 eHMP Status Bar |
| Figure 9-2 eHMP Data Sources |

| Figure 10-1 Access Control Tab |
|--|
| Figure 10-2 Access Control Item from Workspaces Dropdown |
| Figure 10-3 User Management Applet |
| Figure 10-4 Search Form |
| Figure 10-5 Select Permission Set |
| Figure 10-6 Users Table |
| Figure 10-7 Filter Button |
| Figure 10-8 Tool Bar |
| Figure 10-9 Row Selection: User Info Detail View89 |
| Figure 10-10: Row Selection |
| Figure 10-11 User Info Detail View90 |
| Figure 10-12 Edit User's Permission Sets90 |
| Figure 10-13 Permission Sets Selection Form |
| Figure 10-14 Filter Permission Sets |
| Figure 10-15 Remove Selected Permission Set92 |
| Figure 10-16 Updated User Info Detail View92 |
| Figure 10-17 Updated Users Table – Results View |
| Figure 10-18 Alerts |
| Figure 10-19 Notification: Permission Set Successfully Modified |
| Figure 10-20 Notification: Permission Set Successfully Modified - eHMP Inactive User94 |
| Figure 10-21 Warning: Too Many Results94 |
| Figure 10-22 Error Retrieving Users: Inactive Users in VistA, eHMP, or Both |
| Figure 10-23 Error Retrieving Users: Inactive Users in eHMP94 |
| Figure 10-24 Error Retrieving Users: Inactive Users in VistA94 |
| Figure 10-25 Error Retrieving Users: Spelling95 |
| Figure 10-26 Error Editing Permissions: Not Allowed to Remove Permission |
| Figure 10-27 Error Editing Permission Sets: Not Allowed to Remove Permission Set |
| Figure 10-28 Error Editing Permission Sets: Conditional Removing of a Permission Set |
| Figure 10-29 Error Editing Permissions or Permission Sets |
| Figure 10-30 Info Alerts |

Chapter 1: Introduction to eHMP

About eHMP

The Enterprise Health Management Platform (eHMP) project is a multi-year effort to evolve a modern, service-oriented platform which provides a web-based user interface (UI), clinical data services, and assembles patient clinical data from federated Veterans Health Information Systems and Technology Architecture (VistA) repositories and Department of Defense (DoD) data sources, reflective of each location providing care to the patient. This federated data is aggregated into an enterprise patient record. eHMP service components will span all application layers, including presentation, business and core services, and data access.

Increment 3 is the development increment for eHMP v1.3, which moves eHMP beyond a readonly viewer application, by creating basic write-back capabilities. The write-back capability will be saved to the appropriate VistA instance as the system of record (SOR) for patient data. Other eHMP v1.3 capabilities are intended to address the essential clinical workflow for basic outpatient primary care visits, including encounter management, progress notes, patient status, structured data entry, and basic order entry.

System Requirements

eHMP User Interface (UI)

eHMP is a web-based application, and is designed to run in a web browser. eHMP release v1.3 is optimized for use with Internet Explorer 11 (IE 11).

eHMP Help

Online Help Feature

There are online help icons throughout the eHMP application. The online help feature provides detailed information about specific system topics. Users can click an icon to open context-specific help in a separate window.

National Service Desk (NSD)

The NSD is available to report any issues while using eHMP. Contact information for the NSD will be available once onboarding is completed.

eHMP Help Resources

The VA eHMP SharePoint site¹ provides resources for more reference information on the eHMP application. Some of the available resources include: frequently asked questions (FAQs), quick reference guides, and system demonstrations.

In addition, the VA Software Document Library² (VDL) will house a variety of eHMP documents.

The Organization of this User Guide

This User Guide is organized to mimic the use of the application, beginning with how to log in to eHMP, and progresses by giving instructions for each of the features available within the application.

¹ <u>http://go.va.gov/k9ze</u>

² <u>http://www.va.gov/vdl/</u>

Chapter 2: Getting Started

eHMP can be accessed in two ways: through Internet Explorer 11 (IE11), or through CPRS. The steps for accessing eHMP are described below.

Logging into eHMP via IE 11

1. Open IE11. Enter the **eHMP v1.3 IOC Pre-Production/Test web address**³ into the address field, and the login screen displays.

Note: Once the Production environment is installed at your site, you will need to enter the **eHMP v1.3 Production web address**⁴ into the address field.

The login screen shown in Figure 2-1 is comprised of disclosure and warning language, with application information on the left side of the window, and credential entry fields on the right side of the window.

Figure 2-1 eHMP Login Screen

| ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING This site is intended to be used by authorized VA network users for viewing and retrieving information only except as otherwise explicitly authorized VA information resides on and transmits through computer systems and networks funded by VA; all use is considered to be understanding and acceptance that there is no reasonable expectation of privacy for any data or transmissions on Government Intranet or Extranet (non-public) networks or systems. All transactions that occur on this system other than the viewing and downloading of Web site information and all data transmitted through this system are subject to review and action including (but not limited to) monitoring recording, retrieving, copying, auditing inspecting, investigating, restricting access, blocking, tracking, disclosing to authorized personnel. | ENTERPRISE HEALTH MANAGEMENT PLATFORM |
|--|--|
| All use of this system constitutes understanding and unconditional acceptance of these terms. | Select a facility |
| Unauthorized attempts or acts to either (1) access, upload, change, or delete information on this system, (2) modify this system, (3) deny access to this system, or (4) accrue resources for unauthorized use on this system are strictly prohibited. Such | Access Code |
| attempts or acts are subject to action that may result in criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. | Verify Code |
| ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING ** WARNING | ✓ |

- 2. Select a facility from the **Select a facility...** dropdown menu.
- 3. Enter the VistA access code into the **Access Code** field, and then press the **Tab** key to advance to the following field.
- 4. Enter the VistA verify code into the Verify Code field.
- 5. Click the **Sign In** button to display the Patient Selection screen.

³ <u>https://ppd.ehmp.va.gov</u>

⁴ <u>https://ehmp.va.gov</u>

Adding eHMP to Favorites in IE11

- 1. Access eHMP.
- 2. Click the **star icon** (Figure 2-2) in the upper right corner of the application window.

Figure 2-2 Star Icon

| | | | 航 关 🌣 |
|---|--|---|---|
| | | (| Add to favorites |
| ^ | ENTERPRISE HEALTH MANAGEMENT PLATFORM | Favorites Favorites Microsor MSN We Website Window Control eHMP | History s Bar ft Websites ebsites s for United States s Live |
| | | | |

3. Click Add to Favorites. The Add a Favorite dialog (Figure 2-3) pops up.

Figure 2-3 Add a Favorite

| X | Add this webpage as a favorite. To a Favorites Center. | iccess your favo | orites, visit the |
|------------|--|------------------|-------------------|
| Name: | eHMP | | |
| Create in: | 🚖 Favorites | • | New folder |
| | | Add | Cancel |

4. Click Add

Accessing eHMP using IE11 Favorites

- 1. Open IE11.
- 2. Click the **star icon** (Figure 2-4) in the upper right corner of the application window.

Figure 2-4 Star Icon

| | | fi 🗙 🔅 |
|--|---|---|
| | | Add to favorites |
| ENTERPRISE HEALTH MANAGEMENT PLATFORM | Favorites Favorite Favorite Microso MSN We Website Window Control eHMP | History s Bar ft Websites ebsites es for United States rs Live |
| | | |

3. Click the **eHMP link** (Figure 2-5).

Figure 2-5 Clicking the eHMP Link



4. The eHMP application displays in the browser window.

Accessing eHMP through CPRS

- 1. Access CPRS as usual.
- 2. Select eHMP from the CPRS Tools dropdown menu (Figure 2-6).

| 🖉 VistA CPRS in use I File Edit View T | by: User,Panorama (10.2.2.102) ools Help | | | | | | |
|--|---|--------|--|----------------------------------|-----------------------|---|---------------|
| BCMA,EIGHT (INF 666-33-0008 Apr | VistA Imaging Display VistA Imaging Capture | | re Team Unassigned Attending: Provider,Thirty - (Ir | npatient) Provi | d Flag Remote Data | Ø | Postings A |
| Active Problems No Problems Four | Primary Care Almanac(FK) Primary Care Almanac Test eHMP HMP_SANDBOX | | | | Postings Allergies | | |
| Active Medications Non-VA Ginkgo Tab Non-VA Chromium P Non-VA Acetaminop Ibuprofen Tab | Graphing Lab Test Information Options Digital Signing Setup Perioring | Ctrl+G | aminders Crisk Factor Screening are Depression Screening | Due Date May 29,10 DUE NOW |) / | | |

Figure 2-6 eHMP Link on the CPRS Tools Menu

3. The eHMP application opens.

Note: If the user has accessed a patient's record in CPRS prior to logging into eHMP, that same patient's record will be the default patient view the user will see when they are automatically logged into eHMP. Likewise, if the user accesses a particular patient in eHMP, that patient's record will be the default view presented when the user switches back to CPRS.

Logging Out of eHMP

There are two ways to log out of eHMP: signing out manually, or being automatically logged out due to inactivity.

Manual Sign Out

- 1. Click the **user name** on the header in the upper right corner, and a dropdown displays.
- 2. Click **Sign Out** (Figure 2-7) to log out of eHMP.



Figure 2-7 Sign Out Button on Header Dropdown

Auto Sign Out

When a user has been inactive for 12 minutes, a warning message informing them their session will end in 3 minutes (Figure 2-8) will appear. The user is given the option to stay logged in by clicking the **Continue** button, or to log out of the application by clicking the **Logout** button.

Figure 2-8 Auto Sign Out Warning Message

| Warning: Login Session Ending. | × |
|--|-------|
| Your user session will time out in 3 minutes. To help ensure/protect your information, your user session times out after 15 minutes If you are actively using your app, simply tap Continue to reset the session. You can also tap Logout to logou your user session now. | ıt of |
| Logout Continu | e |

When a user has been inactive in the eHMP application for 15 minutes or more, they will be automatically signed out of the application, and a warning message (Figure 2-9) will appear.

Figure 2-9 Inactivity Logout Message

| You've bee | en logged out due to inactivity. | |
|------------|----------------------------------|--|

Chapter 3: Patient Selection Screen

About the Patient Selection Screen

If the user accessed eHMP through IE11, the Patient Selection screen displays (Figure 3-1), where they have the option to search for a patient.

Figure 3-1 Patient Selection Screen

| Patient Selection ? My Workspace | 😚 🔺 USER, PANORAM | • |
|--|--|---|
| My Site Nationwide | | 0 |
| My Site Search | | |
| Please enter either First letter of last | ame and last four of social security number or generic name search | |
| Q Select Patient | | |
| | | |
| My CPRS List Clinics Wards | | |
| Contraction of the local distances of the loc | | |

Patient Search

In order to access patient information and the detailed views of the eHMP application, the user must conduct a patient search.

My Site Search

The **My Site** search allows the user to search for a patient from several perspectives, including a comprehensive list of all patients, from their defined default patient selection list in CPRS, patients from a specific clinic, or patients in a specific ward at their local VA facility.

General Patient Search

To run a general patient search, enter the first initial of the patient's last name, followed by the last four digits of their social security number (SSN) (Figure 3-2), or enter a generic name in the Select Patient field.

| My Site Nationwide | x | | | |
|----------------------------|----------------|-------------|------------------|--------|
| My CPRS List Clinics Wards | Patient Name | SSN | Date of Birth | Gender |
| | EIGHT, PATIENT | ***-**-0008 | 04/07/1935 (80y) | Male |

Figure 3-2 General Patient Search

My CPRS List

If a user has defined a default patient selection list in CPRS, that same list of patients will be presented in eHMP. A patient may be selected from this list by clicking their **name**.

Clinics

To search for a patient (within a specific clinic) using the **My Site/Clinics** method:

- 1. Click the **My Site** button.
- 2. Click the **Clinics** button. A list of clinics at the local VA facility displays.
- 3. Filter the list of results by entering the **name of the clinic** in the *Filter clinics* field. The results populate as you type.
- 4. Select the **name of the clinic** from the list. The list of patients from that clinic are displayed (Figure 3-3).

| My CPRS List | linics Wards | 0 |
|---------------------|----------------|---------------------|
| Filter clinics | | |
| Last 30d Last 7d | Yesterday Toda | ay Tomorrow Next 7d |
| # | to 🛗 | Apply |
| Audiology | | |
| Cardiology | | |
| Comp and Pen | | |
| Cwt Clinic | | |
| Dental | | |
| Dermatology | | |
| Diabetic | | |
| Diabetic Teleret Re | ader Local | |
| Diabetic Teleret Re | ader Remote | |
| Diabetic Teleretina | il Imager | |
| Emergency Room | | |

Figure 3-3 My Site/Clinics

- 5. Use the **timeframe buttons** to filter through the list of patients at the selected clinic.
- 6. Select a **patient's name** to display the Patient Detail Dialog.

Wards

To search for a patient (within a specific ward) using the My Site/Wards method:

- 1. Click the **My Site** button.
- 2. Click the Wards button. The list of wards at the local VA facility are displayed.
- 3. Filter the list of results by entering the **name of the ward** in the *Filter wards* field.
- 4. Select the **name of the ward** from the list. The list of patients in that ward are displayed (Figure 3-4).

| My CRDS Liet Clinics Wards | - | | | | | |
|----------------------------|-----------------------|-------------|------------------|--------|----------|---|
| | Patient Name | SSN | Date of Birth | Gender | Room-Bed | |
| Filter wards | EIGHT, PATIENT | ***_**-0008 | 04/07/1935 (80y) | Male | 722-В | ~ |
| 2-Intermed | EIGHTEEN, INPATIENT | ***-**-0818 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 730-B | |
| 3 North Gastro | EIGHTYFIVE, INPATIENT | ***_**-0885 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 726-B | |
| 3 North Gu | EIGHTYFOUR, INPATIENT | ***-**-0884 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 735-A | |
| 3E North | ELEVEN, INPATIENT | ***-**-0811 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 727-A | |
| 3EN | FIFTEEN, INPATIENT | ***-**-0815 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 729-A | |
| 3ES | FIVE, INPATIENT | ***-**-0805 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 724-C | |
| 3ES Gu | FOUR, INPATIENT | ***-**-0804 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 724-B | |
| 4 En Psychiatry | FOURTEEN, INPATIENT | ***-**-0814 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 728-B | |
| 4D 4D-Stroke | INPATIENT, GIRL | ***-**-1010 | 04/01/1945 (70y) | Female | 735-B | |
| 4E North | INPATIENT, YOUNGGIRL | ***-**-4567 | 04/01/1991 (24y) | Female | 736-B | |
| 5 West Psych | NINE, INPATIENT | ***-**-0809 | 03/09/1945 (70y) | Male | 726-C | |
| 7A Gen Med | NINETEEN, INPATIENT | ***-**-0819 | 06/01/1995 (20y) | Female | 731-A | |
| 7A Surg | NINETYFIVE, INPATIENT | ***-**-0895 | 02/14/1991 (24y) | Female | 737-A | ~ |

Figure 3-4 My Site/Wards

5. Select a **patient's name** to display the Patient Detail Dialog.

Nationwide Search

The **Nationwide** search feature is used to run a patient search across the enterprise, including all VistA systems, as well as external systems, such as DoD and the Nationwide Health Information Network (NwHIN). This search allows the user to enter the following patient attributes: last name (required), first name, date of birth (DOB), and social security number (SSN).

To run a Nationwide Patient search:

1. Click the **Nationwide** button (Figure 3-5).

Figure 3-5 Nationwide Search

| My Site Nationwide | | | | |
|--|----------------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|--------|
| Nationwide Search Enter the patient's last name and at least or | ne other field to enable search. | | | |
| Last Name (required) | First Name | DOB: MM/DD/YYYY | SSN: ###-###### | Search |

- 2. Enter the patient's last name in the Last Name (required) field.
- 3. Enter the appropriate information of at least one other field (First Name, DOB, or SSN).
- 4. Click the **Search** button. The search results display below the search bar.

Note: Depending on the search results, the request may result in no patient found, 1 to 10 matching results found, or more than 10 records found, which returns a notification message in place of the records (Figure 3-6).

Figure 3-6 Too Many Results Have Returned

| Patient Name | SSN | Date of Birth | Gender | |
|---|--------------------------|---------------|--------|--|
| Too many results have returned. Please be more specific | in vour search criteria. | | | |
| | | | | |

Selecting a Patient

Once the correct patient has been found, select that patient's name from the search results list. If a patient record is not restricted, their record will be viewable after confirming the selection (as demonstrated in the Accessing an Unrestricted Patient Record section) of that patient.

If a patient record is restricted, a warning will appear prior to accessing the record, requiring acknowledgement of the restricted nature of the record before accessing it (as demonstrated in the Accessing a Restricted Patient Record section).

Accessing an Unrestricted Patient Record

To access an unrestricted patient record:

- 1. Click the name of the patient from the search results list.
- The Patient Detail Dialog appears (Figure 3-7).
 Note: The Ward/Room/Bed location displays for patients in a ward (Figure 3-8).



Figure 3-7 Patient Detail Dialog



Figure 3-8 Patient Detail Dialog for Patient in Ward

- 3. Click the **CONFIRM SELECTION** button.
- 4. The patient's record displays in the Main Application Window.

Accessing a Restricted Patient Record

To access a restricted patient record:

1. Click the name of the patient from the search results list.

Note: The word SENSITIVE displays instead of the patient's SSN and DOB.

2. The Restricted Record Dialog appears (Figure 3-9).

Figure 3-9 Restricted Record Acknowledgement



The notification that appears in the dialog makes the user aware that the patient's record is restricted, and advises that if the user proceeds to "break the glass" and open the record, their activity is tracked. In addition, the user's station Security Officer will contact them for their justification in accessing the restricted patient record.

3. Read the notification dialog, and click the **ACKNOWLEDGE RESTRICTED RECORD** button.

4. The **Restricted Record Patient Detail Dialog** appears (Figure 3-10), displaying the user's acknowledgement of the restricted record.

Note: Click the RESTRICTED RECORD banner to display the warning again.



Figure 3-10 Confirm Selection of Restricted Patient Record

- 5. Click the **CONFIRM SELECTION** button.
- 6. The patient's record displays in the Main Application Window.

Accessing a Flagged Patient Record

There are patients in the system with flagged records. The purpose of a patient record flag is to alert providers about certain patients, such as patients with disruptive, threatening, and/or violent behaviors, or research patients. The patient record flags can be national (Category I), which are shared among the VA facilities, or local (Category II), which are only shared at the local site. The user must view and acknowledge the patient record flag during patient selection before accessing the patient record.

To access a flagged patient record:

- 1. Click the name of the patient from the search results list.
- 2. The Patient Detail Dialog appears.
- 3. Click the **CONFIRM SELECTION** button.
- 4. The Patient Flag Dialog appears (Figure 3-11).

Note: Some patients may have more than one patient record flag. Scroll through the patient flag dialog to read all of the notifications associated with a patient.

Figure 3-11 Confirm Selction of Flagged Patient Record

| Eight,Patient | | | | | | | |
|---|---------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| WANDERER | CATEGORY II (LOCAL) | | | | | | |
| This Patient Likes To Wander Around The Hospital. Please Notify The Security Office | | | | | | | |
| Initial Assigned Date: | 12/23/2014 16:00 | | | | | | |
| Approved by: | PROGRAMMER,EIGHT | | | | | | |
| Assignment Status: | Active | | | | | | |
| Owner Site: | CAMP MASTER | | | | | | |
| Originating Site: | CAMP MASTER | | | | | | |
| CONFIRM | | | | | | | |

- 5. Read the notification dialog, and click the **CONFIRM** button.
- 6. The Main Application Window appears, displaying the patient record.

Main Application Window

Once the patient has been selected and confirmed, the patient record will open and users will be navigated to the Main Application Window (Figure 3-12). The Main Application Window is comprised of the eHMP Header, Global Timeline Date Filter, Workspace Manager and listing, search record field, and the user workspace. Each of these areas is described in subsequent chapters.

| Patient Selectio | on 🕜 Tw | ventythree, Patie | nt My V | Norkspace | | | | | | | | | | | | | 0 4 | USER, PAN | ORAM |
|---|-----------------------------|-------------------|-------------|---------------|------------|--------|---|---------------------------|---------------|------------|-------------------|--------|----------------|---------------------|----------------|------------------|--------------|-----------|-------|
| Twent | tythree,Patie | ent Outpa | tient | | | POSTI | NGS | URRENT ENCOUNTER | | 9 | Primary Care: Gre | en | Provid | ler, Fifteen / Pcmn | n-resident, On | e | (555) 555-58 | 58 | - |
| DOB: 0 Gende | 04/07/1935 (80) er: Male | y) SSN: 666-00-0 | 023 £3 | | | С | WADFP | Provider: User,Panorama | | | Mental Health: M | h Team | Vehu, | One | | | | • | NO |
| ₿ 09/01/19 | 995 - 05/18/20 | 016 | | | | | | | | | | | | Menu 🕶 | | Searc | ch Record | | ٩ |
| CLINICAL REN | MINDERS | | | | 0 7 7 | 2 | ENCOUNTERS | | | | 0 ? т . | REPO | RTS | | | | 0 1 | 72 | |
| Priority | Title | | | Туре | Due Date | | Encounter | Last | Hx Occurrence | | | Date | | Туре | A | thor or Verifier | | | |
| Moderate | NIH Coronary | Heart Disease Ri | sk Reminder | Advice | | \cap | Visits | 5y | 118 | 111 | 1111 L (| ↓ De | cember 2006 | | | | | | |
| None | Hepatitis C ris | k Factor Screenir | 18 | Reminder | 11/18/2015 | | | | | | | 12/08 | /2006 | Surgery | P | ovider,One | | | |
| None | Primary Care I | Depression Scree | ening | Reminder | 11/18/2015 | | Appointments | 5y | 94 | 11 | http:// | 12/08 | /2006 | Surgery | P | ovider,One | | | |
| None | Hypertension | | | Reminder | 11/18/2015 | | | | | | | 12/08 | /2006 | Surgery | P | ovider,One | | _ | |
| None | Iraq&Afghan F | Post-Deployment | Screen | Reminder | 11/18/2015 | | Admissions | 12y | 2 | | | 12/08 | /2006 | Surgery | P | ovider,One | | _ | |
| None | TBI Screening | | | Reminder | 11/18/2015 | | h Deserved user | 17. | 10 | | 1. | ✓ Ap | ril 2004 | | | | | | |
| None | Pneumococca | I PCV13 (Prevnar | 13) | Reminder | 11/18/2015 | ~ | Procedures | 179 | 10 | 1 | | 04/01 | /2004 | Consult | P | sthology,One | | ~ | |
| CONDITIONS | | | | | C ? T | 2 | ACTIVE & RECENT MED | DICATIONS | | | 0 ? 7 . | VITA | s | | | | 0 9 | +2 | |
| Problem | | Acuity | Last | Hx Occurrence | | | Medication | | Re | efills Sta | tus/Fillable | Туре | | | Result | Las | it. | | |
| Essential Hyp (Disorder) | pertension | Chronic | 9y | 2 | 1 | ľ | Methocarbamol 500 M TAKE ONE TABLET BY M | MG Oral Tablet MOUTH 1 | | 0 F | llable for 10m | BPS | | 13 | 4 mm[Hg] | бу | • | | |
| Hyperlipidem | nia | Chronic | 9y | 2 | 1 | r I | | | | | | BPD | | 81 | 1 mm[Hg] | бу | • | | |
| Acute Myocar | rdial | | | | | 1 | | | | | | Pulse | | | 74 /min | 6y | • | | |
| Infarction, Un Site, Episode Unspecified | of Care | Unknown | 11y | 2 | 1 | | | | | | | RR | | | 18 /min | 6у | • | | |
| Chronic Systo | olic Heart | | | | | | | | | | | Tem | | 98. | 5 F 36.9 C | 6y | • | ~ | |
| Failure (Dison | rder) | Chronic | 12y | 2 | | | | | | | | 5pO2 | | | 98 % | бу | • | | |
| IMMUNIZATI | ONS | | | | 0 ? + T | 1 | ALLERGIES | | | | 0 ? + . | NUM | ERIC LAB RESUL | LTS | | | 0 ? + | T 2 | |
| PNEUMOCO | DCCAL 15v | | | | | ~ | CHOCOLATE CH | OCOLATE PENICILLIN | PENICILI | IN | MILK | Lab | est | | Result | Las | it | _ | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | HDL | | | 58 MG/D | L 6y | + | | |
| | | | | | | | MILK | | | | | TRIG | YCERIDE | | 162 mg/c | IL 6y | • | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | LDL | HOLESTEROL | | 77 MG/D | L 6v | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | СНО | ESTEROI | | 153 mg/r | - 0y | | - | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | CREA | TININE | | 1.3 mg/d | J Gy | | - | |
| | | | | | | V | | | | | | CREA | THE STREET | | 1.5 mg/d | e oy | | ~ | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | UREA | NITROGEN | | 16 mg/d | L 6y | • | | |

Figure 3-12 Main Application Window

Chapter 4: The eHMP Header

About the eHMP Header

The eHMP Header (Figure 4-1) displays abbreviated information. It lists the logged in user, allows for another patient search, presents demographics about the displayed patient, shows any postings associated with the patient, the visit information for a patient with an inpatient status, and provides the patient's care team information.

The following elements make up the eHMP Header:

- Patient Selection button
- My Workspace button
- User information dropdown
- Patient photo
- Patient demographics, inpatient/outpatient status, and CCOW status
- Patient postings
- Care team information
- Observations
- Notes

Figure 4-1 The eHMP Header

| Twentythree,Patient Outpatient | POSTINGS | CURRENT ENCOUNTER | 9 | Primary Care: Green | Provider, Fifteen / Pcmm-resident, One | (555) 555-5858 | | |
|---|-----------|-------------------------|---|------------------------|--|----------------|---|-------|
| DOB: 04/07/1935 (80y) 55N: 666-00-0023 Gender: Male \$\$ | C W A D F | Provider: User,Panorama | | Mental Health: Mh Team | Vehu, One | , | • | NOTES |

Patient Selection Button

The Patient Selection button Q Patient Selection is located in the top left corner of the eHMP Header. Select the button to navigate back to the **Patient Selection** screen to search for another patient. Click the **X** in the upper right corner of the Patient Selection screen to cancel a search, and return to the current patient record.

My Workspace Button

The My Workspace feature allows users to quickly navigate to a designated workspace. The custom workspace contains applets, data, and information to support the user's needs to manage groups of patients, tasks, and provider-centric communications.

User Information Dropdown

The user currently logged into eHMP displays in the upper right corner of the eHMP application. As depicted in Figure 4-2, clicking on the **user's name** will result in the display of a dropdown menu with the **Sign Out** option.

| Figure 4-2 Sign Out Option | | | | | | |
|----------------------------|--------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| 8 | 📥 USER, PANORAMA 🔻 | | | | | |
| P/ Cl | ANORAMA inician | | | | | |
| 😃 Sign Out | | | | | | |

Patient Photo

eHMP displays the patient image as found in VistA Imaging. The image is retrieved from the Veteran Health Identification Card (VHIC) system and displayed in the header. If an image is unavailable for that patient, then a gender neutral image displays (Figure 4-3).

Figure 4-3 Patient Photo (Example)



Patient Demographics

The selected patient is listed on the header, in the upper left corner. By default, the **patient's name**, **DOB**, **age**, **SSN**, and **Gender** display (Figure 4-4). In addition, a status of **inpatient** or **outpatient**, and the status of clinical context object workgroup (CCOW) is indicated. When eHMP is in patient context, a green chain link icon displays (Figure 4-4).

Figure 4-4 Patient Demographics



A red demographics bar with a broken chain link indicates that eHMP is not in patient context (Figure 4-5).

Figure 4-5 Patient Context

| Twentythree,Patient | | Outpatient |
|-----------------------|------------------|------------|
| DOB: 04/07/1935 (80y) | SSN: 666-00-0023 | |
| Gender: Male | | S\$ 🕨 |

To display expanded patient information:

- 1. Click the **dropdown arrow** to open the Patient Demographics Dialog.
- 2. The dialog contains sections with additional patient information.
- 3. When the **!** icon is displayed, non-local demographic data is available and can be viewed by clicking on the **section** (Figure 4-6).
- 4. Click the dropdown **arrow** again or anywhere outside of the dialog box to exit the dialog and return to the previous view.

| Phone | | Emergency Contact | | | Health Bene | fits And | | Service And Social History | | |
|--|---------------------------|-----------------------------------|--|-------------|---|--------------|-----------------------|-------------------------------------|--|--|
| Home | A | Sist | er Sister | | Insurance | a start | Veteran Status Yes | | | |
| Vista Site KODAK (دەد-ددد ردبىئ | No Record F | Found | No Record Found | (222 | к) 555-7720 зеглісе сопт | ecieu | H | Marital Status Legally Separated | | |
| Work (0) (843) 555-2345 Addresses Home Home Address Charleston, Sc, 29492 | | Work (843) 555-9876 Address | | | Conditions DYSLEXIA (10 DEMENTIA (5 MULTIPLE SC (50%) | 10%) 50%) | | Religion Baptist | | |
| | | Mo | Sist Address Mount Pleasant, Sc, 29464 | | INSOMNIA (30%) | | | | | |
| | | | | | Insurance | | 1.5 | | | |
| | | Ne | Next Of Kin | | Insurance | PRIVATE | | | | |
| Temporary Q No Record Fo | Temporary O | | Brother () Veteran.Brother | | | Name | INSURANCE CO INC | | | |
| | Email Home (843) 555-8765 | | | Group | | | | | | |
| 2 3 | | | | Holder Self | | | | | | |
| 23@EXAMPLE | | | rk | | Effective 01/01/201 Date | |)13 | | | |
| | | (84 | (843) 555-7654 | | Expiration 12/01/2020 | | 26 | | | |
| | | Add Bro We | dress it Address st Columbia, Sc, 2916 | 9 | Date | 12/01/20 | 120 | | | |

Figure 4-6 Expanded Patient Information

Patient Postings

The Postings section of the eHMP Header presents shortcuts to the following pieces of information:

- <u>C</u>risis notes
- <u>W</u>arnings
- <u>Allergies and Adverse Drug Reactions</u>
- **D**irectives
- Patient Record <u>Flags</u>

The Postings area of the eHMP header is depicted in Figure 4-7.

Figure 4-7 Postings Icons



The highlighted letters in the Postings area indicate that detailed information can be accessed. Clicking on a **highlighted letter** opens a dialog with detailed information (Figure 4-8). Clicking on the **highlighted letter** again, or anywhere outside of the box, closes the dialog and returns to the previous view.

Figure 4-8 Expanded Postings Information

| C W A C | Primary C Mental Ho | Tare: Green ealth: Mh Team | Provider, Fifteen / Pcm Vehu, One | ım-reside |
|-----------------------|------------------------|-------------------------------|--------------------------------------|-----------|
| Allergies | | | | |
| PENICILLIN | ITCHING,WATERING B | EYES | | ~ |
| Drug Classes | PENICILLINS AND BE | TA-LACTAM ANTIMICRO | BIALS | |
| Nature of reaction | Adverse Reaction | Severity | | |
| Entered By: | VEHU TWENTYTHREE | Originated | 03/19/2005 08:40 | |
| Verified | 03/19/2005 | Observed/Historical | Historical | |
| . Facility | CAMP MASTER | Observed Date | | |
| CHOCOLATE | DIARRHEA | | | |
| Drug Classes | | | | |
| Nature of | Adverse Reaction | Severity | | |
| reaction | | | | |
| Entered By: | PROVIDER ONE | Originated | 12/17/2007 15:26 | |
| Verified | 12/17/2007 | Observed/Historical | Historical | |
| Facility | CAMP MASTER | Observed Date | | ~ |

Current Encounter

The eHMP Current Encounter feature allows a user to create or select a visit to which almost all other clinical activities can be associated. A visit must be selected before performing an action requiring a visit context. The minimum information required to establish a visit is the Provider, Location, Date, Time, and visit category (Clinic Appointment, Hospital Admission, or New Visit). Once the visit has been selected, all subsequent clinical documentation will typically be associated with that visit, and visit details will display (Figure 4-9).

Figure 4-9 Current Encounter Details



Care Team Information

Abbreviated Care Team Information for the selected patient can be seen in the eHMP Header (Figure 4-10). The information displayed here includes the primary care team and provider, the associate name (if available), the team phone number, and the mental health treatment team and treatment coordinator (if available). If the patient has an inpatient status, the inpatient attending and provider will be listed here instead of the mental health treatment team and treatment coordinator.

Figure 4-10 Care Team Information



To access detailed Care Team information:

1. Click the dropdown arrow. Detailed information displays.

Note: If the patient has been seen at other VistA sites, the user is able to view the listing for each care team by the site for which the patient has a VistA record (Figure 4-11).

2. Click the dropdown arrow again to close the dialog.

| | Primary Care: Green Mental Health: Mb Team | | Provider Vehu Or | , Fifteen / Pcmm-resident, On ne | ie (555) 555-5 | 5858 | |
|---|---|---------------------------------------|---------------------|-------------------------------------|----------------|----------------|----------------|
| | | | , | | | - | |
| Ľ | Provider Title | | | Name | Analog Pager | Digital Pager | Office Phone |
| | Primary Care Pr | ovider | | Provider, Fifteen | (843) 555-5455 | (843) 555-5456 | (843) 555-5454 |
| | Primary Care As | soc Provider | | Pcmm-resident, One | (555) 555-8843 | (555) 555-8876 | (555) 555-8837 |
| ľ | MH Treatment 1 | atment ¹ Other Site Care P | | rs | | | |
| | MH Treatment (| Facility | Nan | ne | Analog Pager | Digital Pager | Office Phone |
| h | | POLAROID | Pcm | m-resident, One | (555) 555-8843 | (555) 555-8876 | (555) 555-8837 |
| | | HDR | Pcm | m-resident, One | (555) 555-8843 | (555) 555-8876 | (555) 555-8837 |
| | | VLER | Pcm | m-resident, One | (555) 555-8843 | (555) 555-8876 | (555) 555-8837 |

Figure 4-11 Detailed Care Team Information

Observations

The observation feature allows you to add an active problem, allergy, or vital for a selected patient. In addition, it provides a quick link to any unsigned documents.

Notes

The notes feature provides you with a quick view of all notes for a selected patient, which are grouped by status. When a note is selected, you have the option to delete, edit, sign, and view the note. In addition, you can add a new note to the patient's chart.

To add a new note:

- 1. Click on **Notes** on the patient header.
- 2. Click on the **New Note** button. The New Note pop up box displays (Figure 4-12).
- 3. Click on the **Note Title** dropdown arrow to add a note title.
- 4. Click on the **calendar icon** to select a date or enter the **desired date** in MM/DD/YYYY format.
- 5. Click on the **clock icon** to select a time or enter the **time** in HH:MM format.
- 6. Enter the **note description** in the Note box.
- 7. Click the **Preview icon** to preview the note.
- 8. Click **Save and Close** to save the note and close the pop up box, **Sign** to sign the note, or **Delete** to delete the note.

| ote mile " | Date | e * | Tim | Time * | | | |
|------------|------|------------|-----|--------|--|--|--|
| | • | MM/DD/YYYY | 0 | 19:39 | | | |
| ote * | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

Figure 4-12 New Notes

Chapter 5: Global Timeline Date Filter

About the Global Timeline Date Filter

The Global Timeline Date Filter controls the amount of historical data displayed throughout the application. It displays two years of patient information by default, and allows the user to modify the date range to allow for easier investigation of records.

The summary view of the Global Timeline Date Filter displays the date range selected with a graphical representation. The bars (blue denotes outpatient and green denotes inpatient) depict the number of patient activities recorded for a specific date (Figure 5-1). Hovering over the date displays a tool tip with detailed information for the specified date. The red line on the graph represents the current date.

Figure 5-1 Global Timeline Date Filter



The list below describes the elements of the expanded Global Timeline Date Filter as seen in Figure 5-2:

- 1. Preset date ranges
- 2. Custom date range
- 3. All Events timeline graph
- 4. Timeline Summary

| All 2y 1y 3m 1m 3 | 7d 72h 24h 12/12/2013 × 🗰 to 12/12/2015 🗰 | CANCEL APPLY |
|--------------------|--|----------------|
| 1 | ALL EVENTS | |
| Outpatient Inpa | itient | |
| | | |
| TIMELINE SUMMARY | 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 | 2012 2014 |
| Date & Time | Activity | Type |
| ✓ March 2015 | - | ^ |
| 03/26/2015 - 16:58 | ELECTROCARDIOGRAM CARDIOLOGY Proc DISCONTINUED | Procedure |
| 🗸 February 2015 | | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Microbiology |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Microbiology |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Microbiology |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Microbiology |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Microbiology |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Microbiology |
| ✓ January 2015 | | |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | GLUCOSE - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | UREA NITROGEN - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | CREATININE - SERUM | Laboratory 🗸 🗸 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | SODIUM - SERUM | Laboratory |

Figure 5-2 Expanded Global Timeline Date Filter

Using the Preset Date Ranges

To use preset date ranges:

- 1. Click the date range to open the **Global Timeline Date Filter**.
- 2. Select the desired **preset date range** (Figure 5-3). The dropdown calendar, All Events timeline graph, and Timeline Summary update with the selected date range.
- 3. Click **APPLY** to set the date range or click **CANCEL** to exit the Global Timeline Date Filter without changing the dates. The patient information for the selected date range displays.

Note: If users click *outside* of the Global Timeline Date Filter box, the box closes and the selected dates are not applied.


Using the Custom Date Range

To use custom data ranges:

- 1. Click the date range to open the **Global Timeline Date Filter**.
- 2. Use the calendar dropdown (Figure 5-4) or enter the dates using the **MM/DD/YYYY** format to choose a custom date range.

Note: Users can only select a *start date* that is in the past and an *end date* that is the current date or a date in the future.

 Click APPLY to set the date range, or click CANCEL to exit the Global Timeline Date Filter without changing the dates. The patient information for the selected date range displays.

Note: If users click *outside* of the Global Timeline Date Filter box, the box closes and the selected dates are not applied.



Figure 5-4 Calendar Dropdown

Using the All Events Timeline

The All Events Timeline (Figure 5-5) displays a graphical representation of events from the full patient historical record that includes both inpatient and outpatient information. It allows users to limit the data set more accurately to perform a quick analysis.

To use the **all events timeline**:

- 1. Click the date range to open the Global Timeline Date Filter.
- 2. Click and drag the **double arrows** on the left of the shaded timeline area to select the **start** date.
- 3. Click and drag the double arrows on the right of the shaded timeline area to select the **end** date. The dates in the calendar boxes above, as well as the Timeline Summary, populate as the user selects the date range.
- 4. Click APPLY to set the date range or click CANCEL to exit the Global Timeline Date Filter without changing the dates. The patient information for the selected date range displays.

Note: If there is no recent data, only the red *Today* reference line displays.

Note: If users click *outside* of the Global Timeline Date Filter box, the box closes and the selected dates are not applied.

| | | | ALL E | VENTS | | | | | | |
|--------------------|-----------|------------------|--------------|----------|-----------|-------------|--------|---------|----|--------|
| Outpatient Inpa | | | | | | | | | | ۲ ۲ |
| 1994 1996 1998 | 2000 | 2002 | 2004 | 2006 | 2008 | 2010 | 2012 | 2014 | 20 | 016 |
| TIMELINE SUMMARY | | | | | | | | | C | T |
| Date & Time | Activity | | | | | | Туре | | | |
| ✓ March 2015 | | | | | | | | | | \sim |
| 03/26/2015 - 16:58 | ELECTROC | ARDIOGRA NUED | M ZZELECT | ROCARDIO | GRAM CARD | IOLOGY Proc | Proces | dure | | |
| ✓ February 2015 | | | | | | | | | | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE 8 | & SUSCEPTI | IBILITY - UN | KNOWN | | | Microl | biology | | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE 8 | & SUSCEPTI | BILITY - UN | KNOWN | | | Microt | biology | | |

Figure 5-5 All Events Timeline

Using the Timeline Summary

As the date range for the patient record changes, the Timeline Summary refreshes to show patient activities within the selected date range. The Timeline Summary is a list view grouped by month. The groups are collapsible and can be sorted by date and time, or type. The data can also be filtered by clicking the **Filter** button (Figure 5-6).

Figure 5-6 Filter Button

| TIMELINE SUMMARY | | C 🚺 |
|----------------------|-------------------------|------------|
| Q cholesterol | × | L' |
| Date & Time | Activity | Туре |
| ✓ March 2010 | | |
| 03/05/2010 - 10:00 | LDL CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 03/05/2010 - 10:00 | CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 03/05/2010 - 10:00 | LDL CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 03/05/2010 - 10:00 | CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 03/05/2010 - 10:00 | LDL CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 03/05/2010 - 10:00 | CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| V December 2009 | | |
| 12/01/2009 - 12:00 | CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 12/01/2009 - 12:00 | CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 12/01/2009 - 12:00 | CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |
| 12/01/2009 - 10:00 | LDL CHOLESTEROL - SERUM | Laboratory |

You can view more detailed information by selecting an activity in the Timeline Summary (Figure 5-7).

| Figure 5-7: | Patient Activit | ty Detail Dialog |
|-------------|------------------------|------------------|
| | | |

| GENERAL INTERNAL MEDICIN | IE | | × |
|--|---|---|-------|
| Ci Patier Appointment Li Sto | Date Type ategory nt Class t Status ocation op Code Facility | 10/10/2013 - 13:00 Compensation & Pension Outpatient Visit Ambulatory NO ACTION TAKEN General Medicine GENERAL INTERNAL MEDICINE CAMP MASTER | ~ |
| Providers Additional Pro | ovider: | Provider,Eight | ~ |
| | | [| Close |

Chapter 6: Applet Views

This chapter describes the different applets within eHMP and the available views for each applet. The applets are listed in alphabetical order.

Active & Recent Medications

The Active & Recent Medications applet provides users with a quick view of a patient's active and recent medications. If the patient does not have any medications for the defined date range, then they will see a message indicating that no records have been found.

Note: If a patient has an inpatient status, then only active inpatient medications and IVs display. If a patient has an outpatient status, then only active outpatient and non-VA medications display.

Active & Recent Medications: Trend View

Figure 6-1 shows the trend view that lists the active and recent medication and dosage, any refills, if there are any changes in the medication, and when the medication was last filled. It also includes all medications that have expired within the last 90 days.

When there is no refill count information available, 'NA' is displayed (usually on DoD medications). When a medication has zero refills remaining, a 'o', surrounded by a red highlighted box, displays. If a medication has one refill left, a '1', surrounded by an orange highlighted box, displays. Medications that have two or more refills remaining displays the number of refills left.

The change column compares the first two medications in the item group. If the first medication dose is less than or greater than the second medication dose, the change is reflected. There is no change if they are the same dose, or if there is only one medication in the item group. 'Exp' is displayed in red for a medication that is about to expire, or has expired. 'New' is shown if the medication is relatively recent and pending. A caution symbol 🛄 displays for recent and discontinued medications.

| ACTIVE & RECENT MEDICATIONS | | | ्र र | 2 |
|---|---------|--------|------|---|
| Medication | Refills | Change | | _ |
| Docusate Sodium 100 MG Oral Capsule Give: 100MG PO QDAY | NA | Ехр | 59d | |
| gabapentin 600 MG Oral Tablet Give: 1200MG PO Q6H | NA | 0 | 5m | |
| Methadone Hydrochloride 10 MG Oral Tablet Give: 15MG PO Q12H | NA | | 5m | |
| gabapentin 300 MG Oral Capsule Give: 300MG PO Q6H | NA | | 5m | |

Figure 6-1 Active & Recent Medications Applet Trend View

To display more information for a medication:

- 1. Click on the left side of the medication tile to display a set of icons.
- 2. Click on the right side of the medication tile to display a quick view containing up to the last five fills for the selected medication consisting of the last update date, medication name with dosage, sig and time since last change.

Active & Recent Medications: Summary View

Figure 6-2 depicts the summary view listing the medication and dosage, and the facility where the medication was prescribed.

Figure 6-2 Active & Recent Medications Applet Summary View

| ACTIVE & RECENT MEDICATIONS | C | ? | T | 2 |
|---|----------|---|---|--------|
| Medication | Facility | , | | |
| DOCUSATE NA CAP, ORAL (ACTIVE) Give: 100MG PO QDAY | BAY | | | \sim |
| DOCUSATE NA CAP, ORAL (ACTIVE) Give: 100MG PO QDAY | BAY | | | |
| DOCUSATE NA CAP, ORAL (EXPIRED) Give: 100MG PO QDAY | BAY | | | |
| GABAPENTIN TAB (DISCONTINUED) Give: 1200MG PO Q6H | BAY | | | |
| GABAPENTIN TAB (DISCONTINUED) Give: 1200MG PO Q6H | BAY | | | |

Active & Recent Medications: Detail View

To display a detailed view of an active or recent medication from the trend or summary view:

1. Click an active or recent medication from the list to display the Details form button (Figure 6-3).

Figure 6-3 Active & Recent Medications Details Form Button

| Details form ACTING & RECENT MEDICATIONS | c | ? | ۲ | 2 |
|---|----------|---|---|---|
| i 🔁 Ion | Facility | | | |
| DOC TATE NA CAP, ORAL (ACTIVE) Give: 100MG PO QDAY | BAY | | | |
| DOCUSATE NA CAP, ORAL (ACTIVE) Give: 100MG PO QDAY | BAY | | | |
| DOCUSATE NA CAP, ORAL (EXPIRED) Give: 100MG PO QDAY | BAY | | | |
| GABAPENTIN TAB (DISCONTINUED) Give: 1200MG PO Q6H | BAY | | | |
| GABAPENTIN TAB (DISCONTINUED) Give: 1200MG PO Q6H | BAY | | | |

2. Click on the **Details form** button to open the Active & Recent Medication Detail Dialog box (Figure 6-4).

| Order Hx | Simvastatin Ta | h 40 MG | | ACTIVE | |
|----------------------------|------------------|------------------------|--------------|---------------|--|
| 10/30/2014 - 10/31/2015 | TAKE ONE TABLET | BY MOUTH EVERY EVEN | IING | ACTIVE | |
| 10/30/2014 - | Prescription No. | Supply | | Dose/Schedule | |
| 10/31/2015 | 500991 | 90 for 90 days (2 of 3 | 8 remaining) | 40 PO QPM | |
| 10/30/2014 - 10/31/2015 | Provider | Pharmacist | Location | Facility | |
| 01/29/2015 - | VEHU,TEN | PROGRAMMER, FIVE | 7A GEN MED | ABILENE (CAA) | |
| 02/06/2015 | Fill History | | | | |
| 10/11/2013 - | 10/30/2014 | 90 for 90 days | Window | | |
| 0/12/2014 | 02/27/2015 | 90 for 90 days | Window | | |
| 10/11/2013 - | | | | | |
| 10/12/2014 | | | | | |

Figure 6-4 Active & Recent Medications Detail Dialog Box

All available orders for the medication display on tabs to the left under Order Hx.

- 1. Click a **date tab** to view detailed medication information for the selected date range.
- 2. Click on a **resource link** under the Links and Patient Education headers, to open a new window for more information on the selected medication.
- 3. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Active & Recent Medication Dialog box, to return to the applet.

Allergies

The Allergies applet provides a trend, summary, and expanded view of identified patient allergies and adverse drug reactions, with standardized coding references from all sources. If the patient does not have any medications for the defined date range, then they will see a message indicating that no records have been found.

Note: It is common for a patient to have more than one instance of the same allergy listed.

Allergies: Trend View

Top allergy information for a given patient is displayed in pill format (Figure 6-5). A red pill indicates a severe allergy, an orange pill indicates a moderate allergy, and a white pill indicates a mild allergy.

Figure 6-5 Allergies Applet Trend View

| LLERGIES | | | | C | 2 |
|------------------------|-------|----------|------------|---|---|
| BUTTERSCOTCH FLAVORING | HONEY | SOY MILK | BEE STINGS | | |
| PENICILLIN MILK | | | | | |

Allergies: Summary View

The summary view (Figure 6-6) lists the allergen name, reaction, and level of severity for each allergen. The default summary view lists the allergies sorted first by severity, then by the date the allergy was entered into the VA system.

| ALLERGIES | | C | ? | Ф | 2 |
|---------------|--|----|--------|-----|---|
| Allergen Name | Reaction | Se | everit | y | |
| NUTS | NAUSEA, VOMITING | 6 | evere | | |
| CHOCOLATE | ANXIETY; ITCHING,WATERING EYES; DROWSINESS; NAUSEA,VOMITING; DIARRHEA; RASH | | loder | ate | |
| DUST | DROWSINESS; ITCHING,WATERING EYES | | loder | ate | |
| GRASS POLLEN | ITCHING,WATERING EYES | | Aild | | |

Figure 6-6 Allergies Applet Summary View

Allergies: Expanded View

The default expanded view lists the allergies sorted first by severity, then by the date the allergy was entered into the VA system.

The expanded view of Allergies (Figure 6-7) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Allergen Name
- Standardized Allergen
- Reaction
- Severity
- Drug class
- Entered By
- Facility

Figure 6-7 Allergies Applet Expanded View

| ALLERGIES | | | | | | C ? × |
|---------------|---------------------------------|--|----------|------------|----------------|-------------|
| Allergen Name | Standardized Allergen | Reaction | Severity | Drug Class | Entered By | Facility |
| NUTS | Nuts | NAUSEA, VOMITING | Severe | | USER, PANORAMA | CAMP MASTER |
| CHOCOLATE | Chocolate | ANXIETY; ITCHING,WATERING EYES; DROWSINESS; NAUSEA,VOMITING; DIARRHEA; RASH | Moderate | | USER, PANORAMA | CAMP MASTER |
| DUST | House dust (Greer Labs) extract | DROWSINESS; ITCHING, WATERING EYES | Moderate | | USER,PANORAMA | CAMP MASTER |
| GRASS POLLEN | Grass pollen | ITCHING,WATERING EYES | Mild | | USER, PANORAMA | CAMP MASTER |

Allergies: Detail View

To display a detailed view of an allergy from the trend, summary, or expanded views:

- 1. Click an allergy to display a set of icons.
- 2. Click the **Details Form** button to open the Allergy Detail Dialog box (Figure 6-8).

Figure 6-8 Allergy Detail Dialog Box

| Allergen - GRASS POLLE | Ν | ↑ Previous ↓ Next | × |
|--|--|-------------------|---|
| GRASS POLLEN Symptoms: ITCHING,WATERI | NG EYES | Mild | ^ |
| Drug Classes: Nature of Reaction: Entered By: Originated: Verified: Observed/Historical: Observed Date: Site: | Adverse Reaction USER,PANORAMA 08/24/2015 - 10:18 08/24/2015 - 10:19 Observed 08/24/2015 - 00:00 CAMP MASTER | | |
| Comments: | | | ~ |
| | | Close | |

- 3. Click the **Previous** and **Next** buttons to navigate through the allergies.
- 4. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Allergy Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

Appointments & Visits

The Appointments & Visits applet lists any future outpatient or specialty care appointments, and past clinic visits, for a selected patient at VA and DoD facilities.

Appointments & Visits: Summary View

Figure 6-9 displays the summary view listing the appointment dates, encounter descriptions, the locations where the patient was seen, the status of the appointment, and the facility they visited.

| APPOINTMENTS & VISITS | 5 | | 4 | ? ? | • | 2 |
|-----------------------|-------------|--------------|----------------|-----|-------|--------|
| Date | Description | Location | Status | Fa | ility | |
| 03/14/2015 - 16:58 | Visit | NHCU | | TS | Г1 | \sim |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | SCHEDULED/KEPT | BA | Y | |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | SCHEDULED/KEPT | BA | Y | |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | SCHEDULED/KEPT | BA | Y | |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | | TS | Г1 | |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | | TS | Г2 | |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | | TS | Г1 | |
| 08/06/2014 - 11:47 | Visit | DERMATOLOGY | | TS | T1 | |
| 08/06/2014 - 11:47 | Visit | DERMATOLOGY | | TS | Г2 | - U |
| 08/06/2014 - 11:47 | Visit | DERMATOLOGY | | TS | Г1 | Ť |

Figure 6-9 Appointments & Visits Applet Summary View

Appointments & Visits: Expanded View

Figure 6-10 depicts the expanded view of the Appointments & Visits applet. The following information is displayed in sortable columns:

- Date
- Description
- Location
- Status
- Type
- Provider
- Reason
- Facility

Figure 6-10 Appointments & Visits Applet Expanded View

| APPOINTMENTS & VIS | SITS | | | | | C 1 | τ 1 | × |
|--------------------------|-------------|--------------|----------------|-----------------------------|------------------|---|------------|--------|
| All 2yr 1yr 3mo | o 1mo 7 | d 72hr 24hr | 02/26/2014 | to 02/26/2016 | Appl | у | | |
| Q Enter your text filter | | | | | | | | |
| Source: All VA + DOD | • | | | | | | | |
| Date | Description | Location | Status | Туре | Provider | Reason | Fa | cility |
| 03/14/2015 - 16:58 | Visit | NHCU | | Daily Hospitalization Data | Nurse,Eighteen | | TS | T1 |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | SCHEDULED/KEPT | Regular | Provider,Fifteen | | BA | Υ |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | SCHEDULED/KEPT | Regular | Provider,Fifteen | | BA | Υ |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | SCHEDULED/KEPT | Regular | Provider,Fifteen | | BA | Y |
| 08/31/2014 - 14:00 | Visit | PRIMARY CARE | | Office/outpatient Visit Est | Provider,Fifteen | UNSPECIFIED INFECTION OF LOWER LEG BONE | TS | T1 |

The default view contains both VA and DoD data, but users can change the Source to filter the results. The Source filtering labels include: Local VA, All VA, and All VA + DoD.

To filter by **source**:

- 1. Click the **Source** dropdown button to view a list of data filtering labels.
- 2. Select the desired source.
- 3. The appointment and visit data is filtered according to the selected source.

Appointments & Visits: Detail View

To display the details of an encounter (Figure 6-11) from the summary or expanded applet:

- 1. Click an **appointment or visit** from the list to display the Detail Dialog box.
- 2. Click the **Next** and **Previous** buttons to navigate between appointments and visits.
- 3. Click the **Close** button, the **X** button in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

| Visit | | | ↑ Previous | ↓ Next × |
|---------|--|--|------------|----------|
| | Date: Type: Description: Patient Class: Location: Status: Stop Code: Provider: Facility: | 08/31/2014 - 14:00 Regular Visit Ambulatory PRIMARY CARE SCHEDULED/KEPT PRIMARY CARE/MEDICINE Provider,Fifteen BAY | | ^ |
| Reason: | | | | |
| | | | | Close |

Figure 6-11 Detail Dialog

Clinical Reminders

The Clinical Reminders applet provides a summary and expanded view of the clinical reminders in effect for a patient from all sites. These reminders advise users when upcoming events are due for the patient.

Clinical Reminders: Summary View

Figure 6-12 shows the summary view that lists the priority (if any), title, type, and due date for any clinical reminders.

| | REMINDERS | | C | 2 |
|----------|------------------------------------|----------|----------|--------|
| Priority | Title | Туре | Due Date | |
| None | Hepatitis C risk Factor Screening | Reminder | 6/1/2015 | \sim |
| None | Primary Care Depression Screening | Reminder | 6/1/2015 | |
| None | Hypertension | Reminder | 6/1/2015 | |
| None | Hypertension and BP>140/90 | Reminder | 6/1/2015 | |
| None | Iraq&Afghan Post-Deployment Screen | Reminder | 6/1/2015 | |

Figure 6-12 Clinical Reminders Applet Summary View

Clinical Reminders: Expanded View

Figure 6-13 depicts the expanded view of the Clinical Reminders applet. The following information is displayed in sortable columns:

- Priority
- Title
- Type
- Due Date
- Done Date

Figure 6-13 Clinical Reminders Applet Expanded View

| CLINICAL R | EMINDERS | | | ्र र | x |
|------------|------------------------------------|----------|-----------|-----------|--------|
| Priority | Title | Туре | Due Date | Done Date | |
| None | Hepatitis C risk Factor Screening | Reminder | 8/25/2015 | | \sim |
| None | Primary Care Depression Screening | Reminder | 8/25/2015 | | |
| None | Hypertension | Reminder | 8/25/2015 | | |
| None | Hypertension and BP>140/90 | Reminder | 8/25/2015 | | |
| None | Iraq&Afghan Post-Deployment Screen | Reminder | 8/25/2015 | | |
| None | TBI Screening | Reminder | 8/25/2015 | | |

Clinical Reminders: Detail View

To display the details of a clinical reminder from the summary or expanded applet:

- 1. Click a **clinical reminder** from the list to display the Clinical Reminders Detail Dialog box (Figure 6-14).
- 2. Click the **Close** button, the **X** button in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Clinical Reminders Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

Figure 6-14 Clinical Reminders Detail Dialog

| Reminder | × | 0 |
|--|-------|---|
| Hypertension | | ^ |
| Due Date: 6/1/2015 | | |
| Detail: Frequency: Due every 1 year for all ages. | | |
| Cohort: Problem Diagnosis: 06/01/2015@16:22:19 401.9 (ICD-9-CM) Essential Hypertension Date Entered: 04/10/2007; Date Last Modified: 04/10/2007 Status: ACTIVE; Priority: CHRONIC Prov. Narr Hypertension | | > |
| | Close | |

Community Health Summaries

The Community Health Summaries applet displays the selected patient's clinical health care summaries received from VA's external Health Information Exchange (HIE) partners who participate in the NwHIN.

Community Health Summaries: Summary View

The summary view (Figure 6-15) lists the date of service and authoring institution(s) of each care summary.

| COMMUNITY HEAL | TH SUMMARIES | С | ? | T | 2 |
|----------------|--|---|---|---|--------|
| Date | Authoring Institution | | | | |
| 06/17/2014 | Kaiser Permanente Mid-Atlantic STSTMA2 | | | | \sim |
| 06/17/2014 | Inland Northwest Health Services | | | | |
| 06/17/2014 | Regenstrief Institute Clinic | | | | |
| 06/17/2014 | HAWAII PACIFIC HEALTH SA | | | | |
| 06/17/2014 | Kaiser Permanente Southern California - RESC | | | | |
| 06/17/2014 | Conemaugh Health System | | | | |
| 03/11/2014 | Allscripts CCDA Example | | | | |
| 11/16/2014 | Epic CCDA Example 1 | | | | ~ |
| 05/17/2014 | Cerner CCDA Example | | | | |

Figure 6-15 Community Health Summaries Applet Summary View

Community Health Summaries: Expanded View

The expanded view of the Community Health Summaries applet (Figure 6-16) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Date
- Description
- Authoring Institution

Figure 6-16 Community Health Summaries Applet Expanded View

| COMMUNITY HEALTH | SUMMARIES | С ? т х |
|--------------------|-------------------------------|--|
| Date | Description | Authoring Institution |
| 06/17/2014 - 01:40 | Continuity of Care Document | Kaiser Permanente Mid-Atlantic STSTMA2 |
| 06/17/2014 - 01:40 | Continuity of Care Document | Inland Northwest Health Services |
| 06/17/2014 - 01:40 | Continuity of Care Document | Regenstrief Institute Clinic |
| 06/17/2014 - 01:41 | Continuity of Care Document | HAWAII PACIFIC HEALTH SA |
| 06/17/2014 - 01:41 | Continuity of Care Document | Kaiser Permanente Southern California - RESC |
| 06/17/2014 - 01:41 | Continuity of Care Document | Conemaugh Health System |
| 03/11/2014 - 06:22 | Continuity of Care Document | Allscripts CCDA Example |
| 11/16/2014 - 05:42 | Continuity of Care Document | Epic CCDA Example 1 |
| 05/17/2014 - 02:22 | Continuity of Care Document | Cerner CCDA Example |
| 12/30/2014 - 01:12 | Continuity of Care Document | Epic CCDA Example 2 |
| 06/16/2014 - 21:39 | Summarization of episode note | HEALTHELINK |

Community Health Summaries: Detail View

To display the Community Health Summaries Detail Dialog from the summary or expanded applet:

- 1. Click a **health summary item** from the list, and the Community Health Summaries Detail Dialog box opens (Figure 6-17).
- 2. Scroll through the document or use the **Table of Contents hyperlinks** to go directly to a section.
- 3. Click the **Back to Top** hyperlink to go to beginning of the document.
- 4. Click the **Next** and **Previous** buttons to navigate between Community Health Summaries.
- 5. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Community Health Summaries Detail Dialog box, to return to the expanded applet.

| able of Contents | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| Source Comments | 5 | | | |
| Active Allergies an | d Adverse Reactions | | | |
| Medications | | | | |
| Active Problems | | | | |
| Resolved Problem | S | | | |
| Encounters from 0 |)5/08/2014 to 08/08/20 | 014 | | |
| Plan of Care | | | | |
| Immunizations | | | | |
| Social History | | | | |
| Procedures from 0 | 05/08/2014 to 08/08/20 | 014 | | |
| Results from 05/08 | 8/2014 to 08/08/2014 | | | |
| Last Filed Vitals | | | | |
| NOTE: The informatic identify all current | to Top on displayed by Card t or past patient co | e Epic is extracted onditions. Seebelow | from the completemed for further instruct | ical record and may not ions regarding Mental |
| ource Comments Back NOTE: The informatic identify all current Health and CDRP pat | ktoTop on displayed by Carr t or past patient c ients.Kaiser Perman verse Reactions Back | e Epic is extracted onditions. Seebelow wente Mid-Atlantic - | from the completemed for further instruct CLMSMAM | ical record and may not ions regarding Mental |
| ource Comments Back NOTE: The informatic identify all current Health and CDRP pat | k to Top on displayed by Carr t or past patient co ients.Kaiser Perman verse Reactions Back Noted Date | e Epic is extracted onditions. Seebelow ente Mid-Atlantic - ctoTop Severity | from the completemed for further instruct CLMSMAM Reactions | ical record and may not ions regarding Mental Comments |
| OUTCE Comments Back NOTE: The informatic identify all current Health and CDRP pat ctive Allergies and Add Allergen Calcium | k to Top on displayed by Card t or past patient co ients.Kaiser Perman verse Reactions Back Noted Date 07/07/2014 | e Epic is extracted onditions. Seebelow wente Mid-Atlantic - ctoTop Severity | from the completemed for further instruct CLMSMAM Reactions | ical record and may not ions regarding Mental Comments |
| ource Comments Back NOTE: The informatic identify all current Health and CDRP pat Active Allergies and Add Allergen Calcium Fish - Derivative | k to Top on displayed by Carr t or past patient co ients.Kaiser Perman verse Reactions Back Noted Date 07/07/2014 07/07/2014 | e Epic is extracted onditions. Seebelow ente Mid-Atlantic - ctoTop Severity | from the completemed for further instruct CLMSMAM Reactions | ical record and may not ions regarding Mental |
| ource Comments Back NOTE: The informatic identify all current Health and CDRP pat Active Allergies and Add Allergen Calcium Fish - Derivative | k to Top on displayed by Carr t or past patient co ients.Kaiser Perman verse Reactions Back Noted Date 07/07/2014 07/07/2014 | e Epic is extracted onditions. Seebelow ente Mid-Atlantic - ctoTop Severity | from the completemed for further instruct CLMSMAM Reactions | ical record and may not ions regarding Mental |

Figure 6-17 Community Health Summaries Detail Dialog

Conditions

The Conditions applet displays a list of conditions, with standardized coding references, that has been compiled by the providers.

Conditions: Trend View

Figure 6-18 shows the trend view that lists the problem, acuity of problem, when the problem was last reported, the history of occurrences for the patient's condition, and a graph depicting the amount of treatment received. If applicable, the conditions are grouped by their standardization codes Systemized Nomenclature of Medicine Clinical Terms (SNOMED CT).

| CONDITIONS | | | | C T 2 |
|--|---------|------|---------------|------------|
| Problem | Acuity | Last | Hx Occurrence | |
| Hand Joint Pain (Finding) | Chronic | 17m | 1 | |
| Shocklike Sensation From Left Elbow To Hand | Chronic | 17m | 1 | 1 |
| Bone Pain (Finding) | Chronic | 17m | 1 | 1 |
| Swelling Of Limb (Finding) | Chronic | 18m | 1 | I , |

Figure 6-18 Conditions Applet Trend View

Conditions: Summary View

Figure 6-19 shows the summary view that lists the description, the acuity of the patient's condition, and the status of the condition.

Figure 6-19 Conditions Applet Summary View

| CONDITIONS | 4 | с ? т | 2 |
|--|---------|--------------|---|
| Description | Acuity | Status | |
| Diabetes Mellitus Type II or unspecified | Chronic | Active | |
| Chronic Systolic Heart failure | Chronic | Active | |
| Acute myocardial infarction, unspecified site, episode of care unspecified | Unknown | Active | |
| Hypertension | Chronic | Active | |
| Hyperlipidemia | Chronic | Active | - |
| Occasional, uncontrolled chest pain | Acute | Active | ~ |
| The second state of the second | | | |

Conditions: Expanded View

The expanded view of the Conditions applet (Figure 6-20) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Description
- Standardized Description
- Acuity
- Status
- Onset Date
- Last Updated
- Provider
- Facility

Figure 6-20 Conditions Applet Expanded View

| CONDITIONS | | | | | | | 3 7 T X |
|--|---|---------|--------|------------|--------------|-------------------|----------|
| Description | Standardized Description | Acuity | Status | Onset Date | Last Updated | Provider | Facility |
| Diabetes Mellitus Type II or unspecified | | Chronic | Active | 05/02/1998 | 03/30/2004 | Vehu,Eight | TST1 |
| Chronic Systolic Heart failure | Chronic systolic heart failure (disorder) | Chronic | Active | 03/09/2004 | 03/09/2004 | Labtech,Special | TST1 |
| Acute myocardial infarction, unspecified site, episode of care unspecified | | Unknown | Active | 03/17/2005 | 03/17/2005 | Vehu,Eight | TST1 |
| Hypertension | Essential hypertension (disorder) | Chronic | Active | 04/07/2005 | 04/10/2007 | Vehu,Onehundred | TST1 |
| Hyperlipidemia | | Chronic | Active | 04/07/2005 | 04/10/2007 | Vehu,Onehundred | TST1 |
| Occasional, uncontrolled chest pain | Impending infarction (disorder) | Acute | Active | 03/15/1996 | 05/14/1996 | Programmer,Twenty | NJS 🗩 |
| Diabetes Mellitus Type II or unspecified | | Chronic | Active | 05/02/1998 | 03/30/2004 | Vehu,Eight | TST2 |
| Chronic Systolic Heart failure | Chronic systolic heart failure (disorder) | Chronic | Active | 03/09/2004 | 03/09/2004 | Labtech,Special | TST2 |
| Acute myocardial infarction, unspecified site, episode of care unspecified | | Unknown | Active | 03/17/2005 | 03/17/2005 | Vehu,Eight | TST2 |
| Hypertension | Essential hypertension (disorder) | Chronic | Active | 04/07/2005 | 04/10/2007 | Vehu,Onehundred | TST2 |

Conditions: Detail View

To display the details of a patient's condition from a trend, summary, or expanded applet:

- 1. Click a **condition** from the list and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the Details form button to display the Conditions Detail Dialog box (Figure 6-21).
- 3. Click the **Next** and **Previous** buttons to navigate between conditions.
- 4. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Conditions Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

| Acute myocardial intar unspecified site, episod unspecified (ICD-9-CM 4 | ction, le of care 110.90) | ↑ Previous ↓ Next × |
|---|--|---------------------|
| Primary ICD-9-CM: SNOMED CT: | 410.90 | ^ |
| Onset: Acuity: Provider: Facility: Location: Status: Entered: Updated: | 03/17/2005 Unknown Vehu,Eight CAMP MASTER General Medicine Active 03/17/2005 03/17/2005 | |
| Comments: | | |
| | | Close |

Figure 6-21 Conditions Detail Dialog

Documents

The Documents applet lists multiple categories of documentation from various sources. The document categories include: clinical notes, discharge summaries, advanced directives, crisis notes, warnings, lab results, and imaging and radiology reports.

Documents: Summary View

The summary view (Figure 6-22) lists the document date, type of document, and who entered the document in the system.

| DOCUMENTS | | C T | • Z | | | |
|---------------|-----------|------------------|-----|--|--|--|
| Date | Туре | Entered By | | | | |
| ✓ August 2014 | | | | | | |
| 08/04/2014 | Consult | Provider,Seven | | | | |
| 08/02/2014 | Consult | Provider, Twenty | | | | |
| 08/09/2014 | Procedure | Provider,Seven | | | | |
| 08/08/2014 | Consult | Provider, Twenty | | | | |
| 08/04/2014 | Consult | Provider,Seven | | | | |
| 08/02/2014 | Consult | Provider, Twenty | | | | |

Figure 6-22 Documents Applet Summary View

Documents: Expanded View

The expanded view of the Documents applet (Figure 6-23) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Date
- Description
- Type
- Entered By
- Facility

Figure 6-23 Documents Applet Expanded View

| DOCUMENTS | | | | 0 7 T O Z |
|---------------|------------------------------------|-----------|------------------|-------------|
| Date | Description | Туре | Entered By | Facility |
| ✓ August 2014 | | | | ~ |
| 08/04/2014 | DERMATOLOGY Cons | Consult | Provider,Seven | CAMP MASTER |
| 08/02/2014 | ORTHOPEDIC SURGERY Cons | Consult | Provider, Twenty | CAMP MASTER |
| 08/09/2014 | EEG CP ELECTROENCEPHALOGRAPHY Cons | Procedure | Provider,Seven | CAMP MASTER |
| 08/08/2014 | OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY Cons | Consult | Provider, Twenty | CAMP MASTER |
| 08/04/2014 | DERMATOLOGY Cons | Consult | Provider,Seven | CAMP BEE |
| 08/02/2014 | ORTHOPEDIC SURGERY Cons | Consult | Provider, Twenty | CAMP BEE |
| 08/09/2014 | EEG CP ELECTROENCEPHALOGRAPHY Cons | Procedure | Provider,Seven | CAMP BEE |
| 08/08/2014 | OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY Cons | Consult | Provider, Twenty | CAMP BEE |
| 08/04/2014 | DERMATOLOGY Cons | Consult | Provider,Seven | CAMP MASTER |
| 08/02/2014 | ORTHOPEDIC SURGERY Cons | Consult | Provider, Twenty | CAMP MASTER |
| 08/09/2014 | EEG CP ELECTROENCEPHALOGRAPHY Cons | Procedure | Provider,Seven | CAMP MASTER |

Documents: Detail View

To display the details of an item in the summary and expanded list views:

- 1. Click a **document** in the list. The Document Detail Dialog box (Figure 6-24) opens.
- 2. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, to close the Documents Detail Dialog box, and return to the document list.

Figure 6-24 Documents Detail Dialog

| Ir microbiology report Details | × |
|---|-------|
| Facility CAMP MASTER Author None Status Completed Date/Time 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | |
| Accession [UID]: MI 15 4 [1315000004] Received: Feb 03, 2015@12:24 Collection sample: UNKNOWN Collection date: Feb 03, 2015 12:24 Provider: PROVIDER,TWENTY | |
| Test(s) ordered: CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY completed: Feb 03, 2015 * BACTERIOLOGY FINAL REPORT => Feb 03, 2015 14:20 TECH CODE: 119 GRAM STAIN: CULTURE RESULTS: ACINETOBACTER ANITRATUS - Quantity: >25,000 - <50,000 CFU/ML | |
| ANTIBIOTIC SUSCEPTIBILITY TEST RESOLTS: ACINETOBACTER ANITRATUS : | |
| AMLKACAN. R CEFAZOLIN. S RESTRICTED CEFOXITIN. S CEFOTAXIME. S GENTAMICIN. R TOBRMCN. R VANCOMYCIN. R | ~ |
| | Close |

Encounters

The Encounters applet provides a high level view of the patients' encounters for outpatient visits, appointments, admissions, and procedures to quickly understand the types of care the patient has received.

Encounters: Trend View

Figure 6-25 shows the trend view of the Encounters applet, with data grouped by the following encounter type: visits, appointments, admissions, and procedures. In addition, it displays when the patient was last seen for the encounter, and the history for each encounter type, with a graphical representation.

| ENCOUNTERS | | | | eτ.2 |
|--------------|------|------|-----------|------|
| Encounter | Last | Hx O | ccurrence | |
| ▹ Visits | 17m | | 4 | |
| Appointments | None | | 0 | |
| Admissions | 10m | | 3 | |
| Procedures | 2m | | 1 | |

Figure 6-25 Encounters Applet Trend View

Note: Click the *dropdown arrow* to display a list of encounters for the selected group (Figure 6-26).

| ENCOUNTERS | | | | | c | T | 2 |
|------------------------------|------|------|----------|---------|---|---|---|
| Encounter | Last | Hx C | ccurren) | ce | | | |
| ▹ Visits | 17m | | 16 | | | | |
| - Appointments | 18m | | 3 | | | | |
| Appointment Type | | Last | Hx Oc | urrence | | | |
| GENERAL INTERNAL MEDICINE | | 18m | 3 | | | | |
| Admissions | 10m | | 3 | | ш | | |
| Procedures | 2m | | 1 | | | | Ť |

Figure 6-26 Encounters List in Trend View (Expanded)

Encounters: Detail View

To display the details of an item in the trend list view:

- 1. Click the Encounter group dropdown arrow.
- 2. A list of encounter types for that group display.

3. Click the desired **encounter type** and a set of icons display (Figure 6-27).

| ENCOUNTERS | | | | | | C | ۲ | 2 |
|------------------------------|------|------|------------|--------|------|----|---|---|
| Encounter | Last | Hx (| Occurrence | 2 | | | | |
| Visits | 17m | | 16 | | | | | |
| - Appointments | 18m | | 3 | | | | | |
| 🖹 👁 ment Type | | Last | Hx Occu | rrence | | | | |
| GENERAL INTERNAL MEDICINE | | 18m | 3 | | | | | |
| Admissions | 10m | | 3 | | 1111 | I. | | ~ |

Figure 6-27 Encounters List Item Icons

- 4. Click the **Details Form** button to open the **Encounters Detail Dialog** box (Figure 6-28), or the **Quicklook** button to open the **Encounters Detail** list of the last five occurrences for the selected item.
- 5. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, to close the Encounters Detail Dialog and return to the previous view.

Figure 6-28 Encounters Detail Dialog

| Hospitalization | | | × |
|-----------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------------|-------|
| | Date Type | 08/14/2014 - 13:07 Hospitalization | ^ |
| | Category | Admission | |
| | Location Stop Code | 7A Gen Med | |
| | Facility | ABILENE (CAA) | |
| Providers | | | |
| Ade | ditional Provider: Primary: | Provider,Thirty Provider,Twenty | |
| Reason | | | |
| | R/O MI | | ~ |
| | | | Close |

Immunizations

The Immunizations applet presents a list of vaccines from all sources for a given patient.

Immunizations: Trend View

Figure 6-29 displays the trend view of immunizations a patient has received. All immunizations are represented in pill format. Each pill displays the immunization name, the series number (if available), and the date the immunization was last administered.

Figure 6-29 Immunizations Applet Trend View

| IMMUNIZATIONS | C | ۲ | 2 |
|--|------|---|---|
| Tdap 19m Anthrax 2 19m Hep B - Adult 3 19m Dengue Fever 19m DTaP | 2 20 | m | 1 |
| Td 20m Influenza 20m MMR 1 20m IPPD 20m Adenovirus Type 4 22m | | | |

Detailed information for an immunization can be displayed by hovering over a pill (Figure 6-30).

Figure 6-30 Detail of an Immunization in Trend View

| | IMMUNIZATIO | NS | | | | | C | T | 2 |
|----|-------------|---------|-------------|-------------|-------|------------------------|-------|----|---|
| | Tdap 19m | Anthrax | 2 19m Hep I | B - Adult 3 | 19m | Dengue Fever 19m DT | aP 22 | Dm | ~ |
| Da | ate | Series | Reaction | Since | D 20m | Adenovirus Type 4 22m | | | |
| 01 | /09/2014 | 2 | No | 19m | 2011 | Additioning Type 4 22m | | | |
| 11 | /15/2013 | 1 | No | 21m | | | | | |

Immunizations: Summary View

Figure 6-31 displays the summary view that lists the vaccine name, reaction (if any), date administered, and facility.

| Figure 6-31 | Immunizations | Applet | Summary | v View |
|-------------|---------------|--------|---------|--------|
|-------------|---------------|--------|---------|--------|

| IMMUNIZATIONS | | | C ? T | 2 |
|---------------|----------|------------|----------|--------|
| Vaccine Name | Reaction | Date | Facility | |
| Tdap | | 01/13/2014 | DOD | \sim |
| Anthrax | | 01/09/2014 | DOD | |
| Hep B - Adult | | 01/09/2014 | DOD | |
| Dengue Fever | | 01/09/2014 | DOD | |
| DTaP | | 12/05/2013 | DOD | |
| Td | | 12/03/2013 | DOD | |
| Influenza | | 12/03/2013 | DOD | |
| Hep B - Adult | | 12/03/2013 | DOD | |

Immunizations: Expanded View

The expanded view of Immunizations (Figure 6-32) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Vaccine Name
- Standardized Name
- Reaction
- Series
- Repeat Contraindicated
- Date
- Facility

Figure 6-32 Immunizations Applet Expanded View

| IMMUNIZATIONS | | | | | | C | ? | τ | × |
|---------------|--|----------|--------|------------------------|----------|----|---|---------|---|
| Vaccine Name | Standardized Name | Reaction | Series | Repeat Contraindicated | Date | | F | acility | , |
| Tdap | tetanus toxoid, reduced diphtheria toxoid, and acellular pertussis vaccine | | 0 | No | 01/13/20 | 14 | D | OD | |
| Anthrax | anthrax vaccine | | 2 | No | 01/09/20 | 14 | D | OD | |
| Hep B - Adult | hepatitis B vaccine, adult dosage | | 3 | No | 01/09/20 | 14 | D | OD | |
| Dengue Fever | | | 0 | No | 01/09/20 | 14 | D | OD | |
| DTaP | diphtheria, tetanus toxoids and acellular pertussis vaccine | | 2 | No | 12/05/20 | 13 | D | OD | |
| Td | | | 0 | No | 12/03/20 | 13 | D | OD | |

Immunizations: Detail View

To display the details of an Immunization from the trend, summary, or expanded views:

- 1. Click an Immunization from the list and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Details form** icon to display the Vaccine Detail Dialog box (Figure 6-33).

Figure 6-33 Immunization Detail Dialog

| iccine - Anth | rax | | | | | Previous | ↓ Next |
|------------------------|--------------------|-----------|----------------|--------------|-----------------|---------------------|--------|
| Name I | Reaction S | eries R | epeat Contrain | ndicated | Date | Facility | Site |
| Anthrax | 2 | N | lo | | 01/09/2014 | DOD | DOD |
| Viewing 12/01/2 | 013 to 12/01/20 | 15 | | | | | |
| All 2yr 1yr ANTHRAX | 3mo 1mo 7d | 72hr 24hr | 12/01/2013 | # | to 12/01/2015 | | Apply |
| Immunizations: 1 | | | | | | | |
| Date | Summary | Reaction | Series | Repeat | Contraindicated | Facil | ity |
| Date 01/09/2014 | Summary Anthrax | Reaction | Series | Repeat No | Contraindicated | Facil DOD | ity^ |

3. To change the date range of the displayed vaccine, select either one of the **preset date** ranges,

OR

- 4. Use the calendar dropdowns and click Apply to choose a custom date range.
- 5. Click the **Next** and **Previous** buttons to navigate between immunizations.
- 6. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Immunization Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

Medications Review

The Medications Review applet provides a single view of the medication list with additional graphical data to support analysis of the existing patient medical data in order to facilitate better clinical decisions.

Medications Review: Expanded View

The expanded view of the Medications Review applet (Figure 6-34) displays the selected patient's medication history in both list and graph formats grouped by Inpatient and Outpatient medications. When a category is selected, the group is expanded to display the list and graph of items.

Note: If a patient has an inpatient status, then the Inpatient group displays and the Outpatient group is collapsed. If a patient has an outpatient status, then the Outpatient group displays and the Inpatient group is collapsed.

Outpatient Medications

The outpatient medication types include: Outpatient, supply, and non-VA (external). The data listed for each outpatient medication order consists of the following, as seen in Figure 6-34:

- Medication name: represents the name of the medication ingredient
- Non-local indicator: an indication that the medication was not ordered at the users home facility
- Sig column
 - First preference: Dose + Units + Route + Frequency
 - If any of the above are missing then concatenation: Strength (i.e. size of tablet)
 + Product form + Sig
- Status/Fillable column
 - Active order displays 'Fillable' and the amount of time the medication can be filled
 - Zero refills displays 'o Refills'
 - Pending order displays 'pending'
 - Expired order displays the 'Expired' and the amount of time from the expiration date

- Discontinued order displays 'Discontinued' and the amount of time from the discontinued date
- o Time Annotations
 - >60 days to 24 months = 'm' (ex. 14m)
 - >47 hours to 60 days = 'd' (ex. 24d)
 - >24 months = 'y' (ex. 5y)
 - 60 minutes to 47 hours = 'h' (ex. 37h)
 - o-59 minutes = The actual minutes expressed with quotations (ex. "48")

Figure 6-34 Medications Review Outpatient Meds

| MEDICATION REVIEW | | | |
|-------------------|---|------------------------------------|------------------|
| INPATIENT MEDS | | | |
| ▼ OUTPATIENT MEDS | | | |
| Name | | Sig | Status/Fillable |
| Acarbose | 0 | 25 MG TAB TAKE ONE TABLET BY MOUTH | Non VA |
| Aspirin | 0 | 81MG PO QAM | Non VA |
| Bupropion | 0 | 100MG PO TID | Fillable For 0' |
| | ۵ | 100MG PO BID | Expired 12m |
| Methadone | | 15MG PO Q12H | 0 Refills |
| | 0 | 15MG PO Q12H | Expired 13m |
| | 0 | 15MG PO Q12H | Expired 13m |
| | | 15MG PO Q12H | Expired 14m |
| | 0 | 15MG PO Q12H | Expired 14m |
| | 0 | 15MG PO Q12H | Expired 14m |
| Methocarbamol | 0 | 500MG PO 1 | Fillable For 10m |

OUTPATIENT MEDICATIONS REVIEW INDICATORS

The Medications Review graph displays a medication's start date, stop date, and the dispensing dates. The graph indicators for outpatient medications are shown in Figure 6-35.





Some tips for the Medication Review graph:

- A white background depicts an active order
- A gray background depicts when a medication has expired
- A hashed gray background depicts when a medication has been discontinued
- If two orders overlap, an active order will override a discontinued or expired order
- Active/Hold and Active/Suspend orders count as being active
- A green bar depicts when a medication has been filled for the first time

Inpatient Medications

The data listed for each inpatient medication order (Figure 6-36) consists of the following:

- Name Column: represents the name of the medication ingredient
- Non-local indicator: an indication that the medication was not ordered at the users home facility
- Sig Column
 - First preference Dose + Units + Route + Frequency
 - If any of the above are missing then concatenation: Strength (i.e. size of tablet)
 + Product form + Sig
- Status/Next Column: the medication status or the time of the next administration
 - Active order displays 'Fillable' and the amount of time the medication can be filled
 - Zero refills displays 'o Refills'
 - Pending order displays 'pending'
 - Expired order displays the 'Expired' and the amount of time from the expiration date
 - Discontinued order displays 'Discontinued' and the amount of time from the discontinued date
 - o Time Annotations
 - >60 days to 24 months = 'm' (ex. 14m)
 - >47 hours to 60 days = 'd' (ex. 24d)
 - >24 months = 'y' (ex. 5y)
 - 60 minutes to 47 hours = 'h' (ex. 37h)
 - o-59 minutes = The actual minutes expressed with quotations (ex. "48")

| IEDICATION REVIEW | | |
|-------------------|-----------------|------------------|
| ▼ INPATIENT MEDS | | |
| Name | Sig | Status/Next |
| Bupropion | 100MG PO TID | Active |
| Docusate | 100MG PO QDAY | Active |
| | I00MG PO QDAY | Active |
| | I 100MG PO QDAY | Expired 3m |
| Gabapentin | 300MG PO Q6H | Active |
| | 1200MG PO Q6H | Active |
| | 300MG PO Q6H | Active |
| | 1200MG PO Q6H | Active |
| | 1200MG PO Q6H | Active |
| | 300MG PO Q6H | Discontinued 23h |
| | 1200MG PO Q6H | Discontinued 6m |
| | 1200MG PO Q6H | Discontinued 6m |

Figure 6-36 Medications Review Inpatient Meds

Medications Review: Detail View

What displays for the detail view of a medication depends on the status of the patient and if the medication was prescribed by the VA or a Non-VA provider.

To display a detailed view of a medication:

- 1. Click either the **Inpatient Meds** or **Outpatient Meds** category. The category expands to display a list of medications.
- 2. Click a medication. The InfoButton and Details Form button display.
- 3. Click the **Details Form** button (Figure 6-37).

| MEDICATION REVIEW | | | | | |
|-------------------|-----------|--------------------|-----------------|------------|---------------|
| | | | | | |
| Details form MEDS | 5 | | | | |
| i Eh | | Sig | Status/Next | | |
| Metformin | 0 | 500MG PO Q12H | Expired 7m | | |
| | 0 | 500MG PO Q12H | Active | | |
| Order Hx | | | | | |
| 01/29/2015 - 02 | /06/2015 | Metformin Tab, | Oral 500 MG | | EXPIRED |
| 02/01/2010 02 | 121 12010 | Give: 500MG PO Q12 | 2H | | |
| 02/01/2010 - 03/ | /31/2010 | | | | |
| 02/01/2010 - 03 | /31/2010 | Prescription No. | Supply | | Dose/Schedule |
| Links | | | | | 500 PO Q12H |
| Clinical Pharmac | cology | | | | |
| MDConsult | | Provider | Pharmacist | Location | Facility |
| 🛂 UpToDate | | PROVIDER TEN | PROGRAMMER FIVE | 7A GEN MED | ABILENE (CAA) |
| VisualDx | | THO HOLINE | | | |
| Patient Educatio | on | | | | |
| Krames StayWel | I | Fill History | | | |
| UpToDate | | | | | |
| VisualDx | | No Fill History | | | |

Figure 6-37 Medications Review Applet Detail View

In addition to the detailed information for the selected patient, Links and Patient Education provide access to external information and resources. This information is found on the bottom left-hand side of the Medications Detail Dialog box.

To use a resource link in the Links section of the Medications Detail Dialog box:

- 1. Click one of the **resources** under **Links** or **Patient Education** to launch the external resource.
- 2. The external resource opens in a new browser tab.
- 3. Click the X on the external resource's browser tab to close it, or click the **browser tab** labeled **VA eHMP** to return to the eHMP application without closing the external resource tab.

Narrative Lab Results

The Narrative Lab Results applet lists the reports of the patient's recorded laboratory results.

Narrative Lab Results: Summary View

Figure 6-38 shows the summary view that lists the date and time taken, lab test (includes a Panel button that opens a test drawer where applicable), flag (yellow indicates abnormal results and red indicates critical), and result of the patient's lab results.

| NARRATIVE LAB RES | 1 | C T O | 2 | |
|--------------------|--------------------------------------|-------|-------------|---|
| Date | Lab Test | Flag | Result | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | | View Report | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | | View Report | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | | View Report | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | | View Report | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | | View Report | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | | View Report | V |
| 02/15/2010 00-40 | Surgical Bathology DICALCANEOUS | | View Deport | 1 |

Figure 6-38 Narrative Lab Results Applet Summary View

Narrative Lab Results: Expanded View

The expanded view of the Lab Results applet (Figure 6-39) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Date
- Lab Test
- Flag

Note: The H, H+, L, and L+ icons indicate abnormal (yellow) and critical (red) highs and lows.

- Result
- Unit
- Ref Range
- Facility

Figure 6-39 Lab Results Applet Expanded View

| NARRATIVE LAB RESULTS | | | | | | CT OZ |
|-----------------------|--------------------------------------|------|-------------|------|-----------|----------|
| Date | Lab Test | Flag | Result | Unit | Ref Range | Facility |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | | View Report | | | TST1 |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | | View Report | | | TST2 |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | | View Report | | | TST1 |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | | View Report | | | TST1 |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | | View Report | | | TST2 |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | | View Report | | | TST1 |

Narrative Lab Results: Detail View

To display a detailed view of a lab result from the summary or expanded applet:

- 1. Click a **list item** and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Details Form** button to open the **Narrative Lab Results Detail Dialog** box (Figure 6-40).
- 3. Click the **Next** and **Previous** buttons to navigate between lab results.

4. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Lab Results Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

| lr microbiology report Details | ▲ Previous ▲ Next × |
|---|---------------------|
| Facility CAMP MASTER Author None Status Completed Date/Time 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | ^ |
| Accession [UID]: MI 15 4 [1315000004] Received: Feb 03, 2015@12:24 Collection sample: UNKNOWN Collection date: Feb 03, 2015 12:24 Provider: PROVIDER,TWENTY Collection date: Feb 03, 2015 12:24 | |
| Test(s) ordered: CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY completed: Feb 03, 2015 * BACTERIOLOGY FINAL REPORT => Feb 03, 2015 14:20 TECH CODE: 119 GRAM STAIN: CULTURE RESULTS: ACINETOBACTER ANITRATUS - Quantity: >25,000 - <50,000 CFU/ML | |
| ANTIBIOTIC SUSCEPTIBILITY TEST RESULTS: | |
| ACINETOBACTER ANITRATUS : AMIKACANR CEFAZOLINS RESTRICTED CEFOXITINS CEFOTAXIMES GENTAMICINR TORSMCNR TRMSULFR VANCOM/CINR | v |
| | Close |

Figure 6-40 Narrative Lab Results Detail Dialog

Numeric Lab Results

The Numeric Lab Results applet lists a patient's recorded laboratory results.

Numeric Lab Results: Trend View

Figure 6-41 shows the trend view that lists the following:

- Lab Test
- Results (numeric data value)
- When the lab result was last documented
- Data Range Graph that includes the following rules:
 - Blue diamond
 current normal
 - Yellow diamond current abnormal low/high
 - Red star current critical low/high
 - Black dot with line attached to current flag previous value and indicates low or high value in comparison to the current value
 - Black dot inside current flag - no change between current and previous values

- White background depicts the reference range
- Gray background depicts outside of the reference range

| NUMERIC LAB RESUL | LTS | | C T O Z |
|-------------------|------------|------|----------|
| Lab Test | Result | Last | |
| Sodium | 139 mmol/L | 2у | → |
| Chloride | 101 mmol/L | 2y | •• |
| Potassium | 5.4 mmol/L | 2y | •• |
| Glucose | 100 mg/dL | 2у | •• v |
| < | | | • > |

Figure 6-41 Numeric Lab Results Applet Trend View

Click the data range graph to display a list of the five previous results of a given lab, including the test value, reference range, age (date and time), and facility.

Numeric Lab Results: Summary View

Figure 6-42 shows the summary view that lists the date and time taken, lab test (includes a Panel button that opens a test drawer where applicable), flag (yellow indicates abnormal results and red indicates critical), and result of the patient's lab results.



| NUMERIC LAB RESULTS | | | C | τ | ¢ | 2 |
|-----------------------|------------------------------|------|---------|---|---|---|
| Date | Lab Test | Flag | Result | | | |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CBC BLOOD SP LB #18415 | н | | | | î |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CBC BLOOD SP LB #18415 | н | | | | |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CBC BLOOD SP LB #18415 | н | | | | |
| 01/29/2015 - | TROPONIN - SERUM | н | 1 ug/mL | | | ~ |

Numeric Lab Results: Expanded View

The expanded view of the Numeric Lab Results applet (Figure 6-43) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Date
- Lab Test
- Flag

Note: The H, H+, L, and L+ icons indicate abnormal (yellow) and critical (red) highs and lows.

- Result
- Unit
- Ref Range
- Facility

Figure 6-43 Numeric Lab Results Applet Expanded View

| NUMERIC LAB RESULTS | | | | | | 0 T O Z |
|---------------------|--|------|--------|--------|-----------|----------|
| Date | Lab Test | Flag | Result | Unit | Ref Range | Facility |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CBC BLOOD SP LB #18415 | н | | | | TST1 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CBC BLOOD SP LB #18415 | н | | | | TST2 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CBC BLOOD SP LB #18415 | н | | | | TST1 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | TROPONIN - SERUM | н | 1 | ug/mL | 0-0.5 | TST1 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CHEM 7 BLOOD SERUM SP LB #18415 | н | | | | TST1 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | TROPONIN - SERUM | н | 1 | ug/mL | 0-0.5 | TST2 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CHEM 7 BLOOD SERUM SP LB #18415 | н | | | | TST2 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | TROPONIN - SERUM | н | 1 | ug/mL | 0-0.5 | TST1 |
| 01/29/2015 - 15:17 | Panel CHEM 7 BLOOD SERUM SP LB #18415 | н | | | | TST1 |
| 05/07/2013 - 10:43 | Sodium, Blood Quantitative - PLASMA | | 139 | mmol/L | 134-146 | DOD |
| 05/05/2013 - 14:10 | Potassium, Serum or Plasma Quantitative - PLASMA | н | 5.4 | mmol/L | 3.5-4.7 | DOD |

Numeric Lab Results: Detail View

To display a detailed view of a numeric lab result from the trend, summary or expanded applet:

- 1. Click a **list item** and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Details Form** button to open the **Lab Results Detail Dialog** box (Figure 6-44).

Note: If the Panel icon is displayed next to a list item, the **Detail Dialog** box will not open. Instead, click the item and a set of icons display. Click the **Details Form** icon, and the specific tests run within the panel display, along with the results. Select a **lab test** under the panel and then the **Details Form** icon. The **Lab Results Detail Dialog** box displays a summary list and a historic graphical representation for the selected test that can be filtered by using the date filter.

- 3. Use the **preset date ranges** or the **calendar dropdowns and select Apply** to change the date range for the displayed lab result.
- 4. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Lab Results Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.



Figure 6-44 Numeric Lab Results Detail Dialog

Orders

The Orders applet displays all orders for the selected patient submitted from all sites.

Orders: Summary View

Figure 6-45 shows the Orders applet summary view that lists the order date, status, order, and facility. Orders can be filtered by type using the Order Type dropdown box within the applet.

| ORDERS | | C | ? | ۲ | 2 |
|------------|--------------|---|-----|-------|---|
| Order Type | All | ~ | | | ~ |
| Order Date | Status | Order | Fac | ility | |
| 03/26/2015 | DISCONTINUED | ELECTROCARDIOGRAM CARDIOLOGY Proc Bedside <discontinued by="" service=""></discontinued> | BAY | Y | |
| 08/14/2014 | ACTIVE | REGULAR Diet | BAY | Y | |
| 08/14/2014 | ACTIVE | REGULAR Diet | BA | (| |
| 08/14/2014 | ACTIVE | REGULAR Diet | BA | (| |
| 02/03/2015 | COMPLETE | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY UNKNOWN WC LB #18424 | BA | Y | ~ |

| Figure 6-45 | Orders | Applet | Summary | View |
|-------------|--------|--------|---------|------|
|-------------|--------|--------|---------|------|

Orders: Expanded View

Similar to the Orders summary view, orders can be filtered by type using the Order Type dropdown in expanded view. The expanded view of Orders (Figure 6-46) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Order Date
- Status
- Order
- Type
- Provider Name
- Start Date
- Stop Date
- Facility

Figure 6-46 Orders Applet Expanded View

| ORDERS | | | | | | | | | | C 1 | ۲ (| × |
|--------------|--------------|----------------------|------------------------|---|---------|-----------------|-----------------|------------|------------|-----|------------|---|
| All 2yr 1yr | 3mo 1mo | 7d 72hr 24hr 02 | 2/25/2014 | to 02/25/2016 | # | Apply | | | | | | |
| Q Enter your | text filter | X Add | | | | | | | | | | |
| Order Type: | NI | \checkmark | | | | | | | | | | |
| Order Date | Status | Order | | | | Туре | Provider Name | Start Date | Stop Date | Fa | cility | |
| 03/26/2015 | DISCONTINUED | ELECTROCARDIOGRAM | CARDIOLOGY Proc Bedsid | e <discontinued by="" s<="" td=""><td>ERVICE></td><td>Consult</td><td>Provider, Five</td><td>03/26/2015</td><td>03/26/2015</td><td>BA</td><td>Y</td><td></td></discontinued> | ERVICE> | Consult | Provider, Five | 03/26/2015 | 03/26/2015 | BA | Y | |
| 08/14/2014 | ACTIVE | REGULAR Diet | | | | Dietetics Order | Programmer,One | 08/14/2014 | | BA | Y | |
| 08/14/2014 | ACTIVE | REGULAR Diet | | | | Dietetics Order | Programmer,One | 08/14/2014 | | BA | Y | |
| 08/14/2014 | ACTIVE | REGULAR Diet | | | | Dietetics Order | Programmer,One | 08/14/2014 | | BA | Y | |
| 02/03/2015 | COMPLETE | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBI | LITY UNKNOWN WC LB #1 | 8424 | | Laboratory | Provider,Twenty | 02/03/2015 | 02/03/2015 | BA | Y | |
| 02/03/2015 | COMPLETE | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBI | LITY UNKNOWN WC LB #1 | 8424 | | Laboratory | Provider,Twenty | 02/03/2015 | 02/03/2015 | BA | Y | |

Orders: Detail View

To display a detailed view of an order from the summary or expanded applet:

- 1. Click an **order** from the list within the applet.
- 2. The Orders Detail Dialog box opens (Figure 6-47).
- 3. Click the **Next** and **Previous** buttons to navigate between orders.
- 4. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right corner, or anywhere outside of the Orders Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

Figure 6-47 Orders Detail Dialog

| ELECTROCARDIOGRAM Bedside <discontinu< th=""><th>CARDIOLOGY Proc ED BY SERVICE></th><th>• Next</th><th>2</th></discontinu<> | CARDIOLOGY Proc ED BY SERVICE> | • Next | 2 |
|---|--|--------|---|
| Activity | | | ^ |
| Ordered by Signature | Provider,Five PROVIDER,FIVE on 03/26/2015 @ 04:58 | | |
| Current Data | | | |
| Attending Physician Ordering Location Start Date/Time Stop Date/Time Current Status Order # | Provider,Five 7A GEN MED 03/26/2015 16:58 03/26/2015 16:59 DISCONTINUED 38434 | | |
| Order | | | |
| Consult Category | ELECTROCARDIOGRAM ELECTROCARDIOGRAM CARDIOLOGY Proc Bedside <discontinued by="" service=""></discontinued> | | ~ |
| | | Close |] |

Reports

Reports: Summary View

Figure 6-48 shows the summary view of the Reports applet that lists available reports by date, type, and entered by. Reports are listed in reverse chronological order so that providers are able to find the most recent report.

| Figure 0-40 Reports Applet Sommary view | Figure 6-48 | B Reports | Applet Summar | y View |
|---|-------------|-----------|---------------|--------|
|---|-------------|-----------|---------------|--------|

| REPORTS | | 3 T | 2 |
|-----------------|-------------------|------------------|---|
| Date | Туре | Entered By | |
| ✓ February 2015 | | | |
| 02/03/2015 | Laboratory Report | None | |
| 02/03/2015 | Laboratory Report | None | |
| 02/03/2015 | Laboratory Report | None | |
| 02/03/2015 | Laboratory Report | None | |
| 02/03/2015 | Laboratory Report | None | |
| 02/03/2015 | Laboratory Report | None | |
| ✓ January 2015 | | | ~ |
| 01/29/2015 | Imaging | Imager.Imagerone | |

Reports: Detail View

To display a detailed view of a report from the summary applet:

1. Click a **report** from the list within the applet.

- 2. The **Reports Detail Dialog** box opens (Figure 6-49).
- 3. Click the **hyperlink** (if available) or scroll down for more information.
- 4. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Reports Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

Figure 6-49 Reports Detail Dialog

| computed tomography, head or brain; without contrast material, followed by contrast material(s) and further sections Details | × |
|--|-------|
| Facility CAMP MASTER Type Imaging Status COMPLETE Date/Time 01/29/2015 - 15:37 Providers Imager,Imagerone | ^ |
| Order Information | |
| Requesting Provider IMAGER,IMAGERONE Orderable Item CT HEAD W&WO CONT Reason TBI | |
| Results | |
| CT HEAD W&WO CONT | |
| Local Title: CT HEAD W&WO CONT Date Of Note: 01/29/2015 - 15:37 Author: Imager.Imagerone A Status: Verified | |
| EIGHT, PATIENT 666-00-0008 DOB-APR 07, 1935 M | |
| Exm Date: JAN 29, 2015@15:37 Req Phys: VEHU,TEN Pat Loc: 7A GEN MED/06-03-2015@16:30 Img Loc: CT SCAN Service: MEDICINE | |
| (Case 5 COMPLETE) CT HEAD W&WO CONT (CT Detailed) CPT:70470 Reason for Study: TBI | |
| CAR ACCIDENT | ~ |
| | :lose |

Stacked Graphs

Stacked Graphs: Expanded View

The Stacked Graphs applet (Figure 6-50) is user defined, and provides graphing functionality. The applet enables users to graph different types of data to a standardized, x-axis timeline, similar to functionality currently available in CPRS.

| STACKED GRAPHS | | | | | | | | | | + dil | • |
|----------------|-------------------|-------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---------|---|
| Concept | | Last | Apr '14 | Jul '14 | Oct '14 | Jan '15 | Apr '15 | Jul '15 | Oct '15 | Jan '16 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Blood Pressure | 180/74 mm [Hg] | 182 d | | | | | | | | | |
| Temperature | 98.2 F | 182 d | | | | | • | | | | |
| | | | Apr '14 | Jul '14 | Oct '14 | Jan '15 | Apr '15 | Jul '15 | Oct '15 | Jan '16 | |

Figure 6-50 Stacked Graphs Applet Expanded View

To add graphs to the stacked graphs applet:

- 1. Create a new workspace. See Chapter 8: Workspace Manager.
- 2. Add the **stacked graphs** applet to the workspace.
- 3. Open the workspace with the stacked graph applet.
- 4. Click the **Add** a graph button +
- 5. A Search field displays.
- 6. Enter the **name** of the desired graph type (i.e., temperature, blood pressure, etc.).The results populate as you type.
- 7. Select the desired graph.
- 8. The graph displays in the Stacked Graphs applet.
- 9. Repeat steps 4-8 to continue adding graphs to the applet.

Tasks

The Tasks applet allow users to access, view, and manage a centralized activity task list in both a provider view and a patient view. The provider view of the applet is displayed in the My Workspace area and lists provider-specific tasks, which can be sorted by priority, due date, patient name, or task. Whereas, the patient view of the applet can be added to a user-defined workspace and lists tasks specific for the selected patient, which can also be sorted by priority, due date, due date, activity, or task.

Timeline

Timeline view provides a detailed view of a patient's visit history.

Timeline: Summary View

Figure 6-51 shows Timeline in summary view. It lists the date and time, activity, and type.
Figure 6-51 Timeline Summary View

| TIMELINE | | C | ? | τ | × |
|--------------------|--|--------|-------|----|--------|
| Date & Time | Activity | Туре | | | |
| ✓ March 2015 | | | | | \sim |
| 03/26/2015 - 16:58 | ELECTROCARDIOGRAM ZZELECTROCARDIOGRAM CARDIOLOGY Proc DISCONTINUED | Proces | dure | | |
| ✓ February 2015 | | | | | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Micro | biolo | ву | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Micro | biolo | БУ | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Microl | biolo | БУ | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Micro | biolo | бУ | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Microl | biolo | ву | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Micro | biolo | БУ | |

Timeline: Expanded View

Figure 6-52 shows the expanded view of Timeline that lists the date and time, activity, type, entered by, and facility for the event.

To display the expanded view for the Timeline applet:

 Select Timeline from the Workspace dropdown menu. The patient's historical visit data displays, grouped by month. The default view displays the date in reverse chronological order.

Figure 6-52 Timeline Expanded View

| TIMELINE | | | | C ? 1 | × |
|--------------------|--|--------------|------------|-------------|---|
| Date & Time | Activity | Туре | Entered By | Facility | |
| ✓ March 2015 | | | | | |
| 03/26/2015 - 16:58 | ELECTROCARDIOGRAM ZZELECTROCARDIOGRAM CARDIOLOGY Proc DISCONTINUED | Procedure | | CAMP MASTER | |
| ✓ February 2015 | | | | | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Microbiology | | CAMP MASTER | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Microbiology | | CAMP BEE | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:24 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - UNKNOWN | Microbiology | | CAMP MASTER | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Microbiology | | CAMP MASTER | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Microbiology | | CAMP BEE | |
| 02/03/2015 - 12:15 | CULTURE & SUSCEPTIBILITY - CALCANEUS | Microbiology | | CAMP MASTER | |

Timeline: Detail View

To display a detailed view of a specific activity:

- 1. Click an **item** from the list, and the Timeline Detail Dialog displays (Figure 6-53).
- 2. Click the **Close** button, the **X** located in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Timeline Detail Dialog box, to close the detailed visit information and return to the default Timeline view.



Figure 6-53 Timeline Detail View

VistA Health Summaries

The VistA Health Summaries applet provides Health Summary Report functionality in eHMP. This is a re-creation of the reports available in the CPRS Reports tab under 'Health Summaries', a feature that is also provided in VistA Web, listed as 'Health Summaries', and representing each facility where the patient has a record.

A Health Summary is a clinically-oriented, structured report that extracts many kinds of data from VistA web and displays it in a standard format. The individual patient is the focus of health summaries. The data displayed covers a wide range of health-related information such as demographic data, allergies, current active medical problems, and laboratory results.

VistA Health Summaries: Summary View

Figure 6-54 shows the summary view of the VistA Health Summaries applet that groups each facility where the patient has a record. The reports are listed under the collapsible facility name, with the number of reports available indicated.

Figure 6-54 VistA Health Summaries Summary View

| VISTA HEALTH SUMMARIES | C + |
|------------------------|--------|
| Facility | Report |
| ∧ TST1 28 | |
| ▲ TST2 28 | |
| ∧ 500 28 | |

VistA Health Summaries: Detail View

To display a detailed view of a VistA Health Summary:

- 1. Click the **dropdown arrow** next to the facility name. A list of reports for that facility display.
- 2. Click on a **report name** and the Report Detail Dialog box opens (Figure 6-55).
- 3. Click the **Next** and **Previous** buttons to navigate between reports.
- 4. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Report Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

Figure 6-55 VistA Health Summaries Detail View

| ST2 - CARE GHT, PATIEN | DIOLOGY REPORTS T, 04/07/1935, 80y, 666-00-000 | 8 | Previous | ↓ Next |] × |
|---------------------------|---|-----------------------|----------------|---------------|-----|
| | | | | | 1 |
| | | | 07/10/2015 11 | :06 | |
| ********* | **** CONFIDENTIAL CARDIOLOG | SY REPORTS SUMMARY pg | . 1 ********** | *** | |
| EIGHT, PATI | ENT 666-00-0008 7A GE | MED 722-B | DOB: 04/07/1 | 935 | |
| | SPN - Selec | ted Prog Notes | | | |
| No data | available for CARD HEART ABM | CNS | | | |
| | MEDB - Med | d Brief Report | | | |
| CONSULT | | DATE/TIME | | | |
| NUMBER | COMPLETED PROCEDURES | PERFORMED | PROCEDURE | CODE | |
| | | | | | |
| 629 | EEG | MAR 14,2010@15:31 | L | | |
| *** END *** | **** CONFIDENTIAL CARDIOLOG | SY REPORTS SUMMARY Pg | 1 ********** | ** | |
| | | | | | ~ |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | Close | |
| | | | | | |

Vitals

The Vitals applet displays the patient's most recently recorded vitals. The information can be viewed both numerically and in graph form.

Vitals: Trend View

Figure 6-56 shows the trend view for Vitals with the following data:

- Type type of vital collected, i.e. blood pressure, pain, weight
- Result data captured in relation to the vital measured
- Last timeframe vital was last collected
- Data Range Graph, which includes:
 - A diamond represents the last (current) value
 - Blue diamond indicates a current normal value
 - Orange diamond indicates a high/low value
- A dot represents previously recorded value
- A dot within a diamond indicates no change between previous entries. The current value is the same as previous.
- If a diamond is to the left of the dot, then the value of the diamond is lower than the dot
- If a diamond is to the right of the dot, then the value of the diamond is higher than the dot

Figure 6-56 Vitals Applet Trend View

| VITALS | | | | 07 |
|--------|-----------|-------|---|----|
| Туре | Result | Last | | _ |
| BPS | 180 mm[Hg | [] 3m | • | |
| BPD | 74 mm[Hg] |] 3m | • | |
| Pulse | 80 /min | 3m | • | |

Vitals: Summary View

Figure 6-57 shows the summary view that lists the patient's blood pressure (BP), pulse (P), respiration (R), temperature (T), pulse oximetry (PO₂), pain (PN), weight (WT), and body mass index (BMI).

| VITALS | 5 | | | | 0 7 2 |
|--------|-----------------|------------|-----|-------------------|------------|
| BP | 180/74 mm[Hg] | 02/24/2015 | PO2 | 99 % | 02/24/2015 |
| Р | 80 /min | 02/24/2015 | PN | 1 | 02/24/2015 |
| R | 15 /min | 02/24/2015 | WT | 205 lb / 93.18 kg | 02/24/2015 |
| Т | 98.2 F / 36.8 C | 02/24/2015 | BMI | 28.6 | 02/24/2015 |

Figure 6-57 Vitals Applet Summary View

Vitals: Expanded View

The expanded view of the Vitals applet (Figure 6-58) displays the following information in sortable columns:

- Date Observed
- Type
- Result
- Date Entered
- Qualifiers
- Facility

Figure 6-58 Vitals Applet Expanded View

| VITALS | | | | 0 | ; ? Υ × |
|---------------------------------|-----------------|-------------------|--------------------|------------|----------|
| All 2yr 1yr 3mo 1r | no 7d 72hr 24hr | 02/25/2014 | to 02/25/2016 | # | Apply |
| Q Enter your text filter | × Ac | bb | | | |
| Date Observed | Туре | Result | Date Entered | Qualifiers | Facility |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | BMI | 28.6 | | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Pain | 1 | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Pulse Oximetry | 99 % | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Weight | 205 lb (93.18 kg) | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Height | 71 in (180.34 cm) | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Pulse | 80 /min | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Respiration | 15 /min | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Temperature | 98.2 F (36.8 C) | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |
| 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | Blood Pressure | 180/74 mm[Hg] | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | | BAY |

Vitals: Detail View

To display a detailed view of vitals from the trend, summary or expanded applet:

- 1. Click a vital (e.g., Blood Pressure) and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Details form** icon and the **Vitals Detail Dialog** box (Figure 6-59) opens.
- 3. A historical, detailed view of that vital is presented in list view and graph view. The shaded area on the graph depicts the reference range, if available, for that vital.
- 4. Hovering over a time on the graph will display a tool tip with more information.
- 5. Click the **Close** button, the **X** in the upper right-hand corner, or anywhere outside of the Vitals Detail Dialog box, to return to the applet.

| Blood Pressur | e | | | | | | ↑ Previous ↓ Next × |
|-----------------|--------------------|------------------|--|-------------------------|--------------------|---|---------------------|
| Vital | Result | | Date Observed | Facility | Туре | Date Entered | |
| BP | mm[Hg] | (|)2/24/2015 - 12:17 | BAY | Blood Pressure | 02/25/2015 - 15:23 | |
| | | | | | | | |
| Viewing 12/08/2 | 2013 to 12/08/2015 | | | | | | |
| All 2yr 1yr | 3mo 1mo 7d 72hr | 24hr 12/08/2013 | to 12/08/2015 | Apply | | | |
| ВР | | Vitals Tests: 98 | BP | | | | |
| Date | Result | Facility | | | | | |
| 02/24/2015 | 180/74 mm[Hg] | BAY | 250 | | | | |
| 02/24/2015 | 180/74 mm[Hg] | BAY | | | | | |
| 02/24/2015 | 180/74 mm[Hg] | BAY | 200 | | | | |
| 01/29/2015 | 114/59 mm[Hg] | TST1 | 200 | | | | |
| 01/29/2015 | 114/59 mm[Hg] | TST2 | | | | /°° / / , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , | 10000 100 |
| 01/29/2015 | 114/59 mm[Hg] | TST1 | 709 700 | 900 009 | 900 \ / \ | and loss in here | • / bee / |
| 01/28/2015 | 154/57 mm[Hg] | TST1 | 3 | 600 | | | 200 \ |
| 01/28/2015 | 154/57 mm[Hg] | TST2 | ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ | | bed * | ieeeed | |
| 01/28/2015 | 154/57 mm[Hg] | TST1 | E ••• | | 6 6 | | •••• |
| 01/27/2015 | 171/64 mm[Hg] | TST1 | 100 | | | | |
| 01/27/2015 | 171/64 mm[Hg] | TST2 | | very servery | 1 1 1 1 1 | ····· | · · · · · · |
| 01/27/2015 | 171/64 mm[Hg] | TST1 | 50 | ···· | ++ \++ +++ | here here here here | ************** |
| 01/26/2015 | 180/57 mm[Hg] | TST1 | ·· •• | | | | |
| 01/26/2015 | 180/57 mm[Hg] | TST2 | | | | | |
| 01/26/2015 | 180/57 mm[Hg] | TST1 | 0 | | | | |
| | | | Jan 09 2014 Jan 01 2015 | Jan 05 2015 Jan 08 2015 | Jan 11 2015 Jan 15 | 2015 Jan 18 2015 Jan 21 2015 Jan | 25 2015 Jan 28 2015 |

Figure 6-59 Vitals Detail Dialog

Chapter 7: Applet Features

About Applets

The applets in the eHMP application are widgets that sort patient data into segments throughout the patient record.

Most of the applets can be refreshed, filtered, maximized, and minimized (Figure 7-1) to display various levels of detail, provide different views of an applet's information, and open search capability.

Figure 7-1 Applet Feature Icons



Refresh Button

The **Refresh** button found on each applet in eHMP updates patient data, and should be used after entering new patient information in CPRS.

To refresh patient data:

- 1. After entering any new patient information in CPRS, access eHMP again.
- 2. Click the **Refresh** button for an applet. The new information displays.

Online Help Button

The **Online Help** button allows users to easily access context-driven, application-oriented help information.

To access Online Help:

- 1. Click the **Online Help** button for more information on a specific topic, and a new window displays with information on that topic.
- 2. Users can download a PDF version of the eHMP User Guide (Figure 7-2).

| M https://ehmp | -r1-2-dit.vistacore.us/help/ | eHMP_User%20G | uide_v2%202_03262015_W | ORKING.htm#_ | Toc415212136 | a |
|----------------------------------|---|---|--|---|-------------------|----------|
| 6.3.1. App | oointment and Vi | sits: Stand | dard View | | PDF Ve | rsion |
| Figure 6-5 she location at wh | ows the standard apple nich the patient was see | t that lists the en, and the fac | date of the visit, a dese ility. | cription of t | he encounter, the | |
| | Figure 6- | -5 Standard Ap | opointments and Visits | Applet | - | |
| | Figure 6- | -5 Standard Appoints | Depointments and Visits | Applet | 4 | |
| | Figure 6- ⊃ Date 05/10/2013 - 08:00 | -5 Standard Appoints Description VA Visit | AENTS & VISITS | Facility TST2 | ^ | |
| | Figure 6- Date 05/10/2013 - 08:00 08/12/2010 - 08:00 | -5 Standard Appoints Description VA Visit VA Visit | Depointments and Visits | Facility TST2 | ^ | |
| | Figure 6- Date 05/10/2013 - 08:00 08/12/2010 - 08:00 08/12/2010 - 08:00 | -5 Standard Appoints Description VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit | Depointments and Visits | Facility TST2 TST2 TST2 TST2 TST2 | | |
| | Figure 6- | -5 Standard Ap APPOINTM Description VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit | Depointments and Visits | Facility TST2 TST2 TST2 TST2 TST2 TST2 TST2 | | |
| | Figure 6- Date 05/10/2013 - 08:00 08/12/2010 - 08:00 08/11/2010 - 08:00 08/11/2010 - 08:00 | -5 Standard Ap APPOINTM Description VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit VA Visit | AENTS & VISITS Location GENERAL MEDICINE | Recility * | | |

Figure 7-2 PDF Version of the eHMP User Guide

3. Close out of the Help window to return to eHMP.

Filter Button

The **Filter** button Mallows users to filter data, limiting the items displayed within an applet.

To filter data for a particular applet:

1. Click the Filter icon to filter the data by entering key terms in the Enter your text filter field.

Note: If more than one word is used, the search results will contain all of the filter words.

- 2. The applet's filtered data persists throughout the application.
- 3. Click the X next to the Enter your text filter field to return to the default list of items for that applet.
- 4. Click the **Filter** icon again to remove the filter field.

User-Defined Applet Filters

Users can add more than one filter text to user-defined workspaces that will persist from patient-to-patient and session-to-session.

To add filters to a user-defined workspace:

- 1. Open the user-defined workspace.
- 2. Click the **Filter** icon and the Enter Filter field displays.
- 3. Enter the **filter text**. The results populate as you type.
- 4. Click Add or press the Enter key on the keyboard to add the filter text. The filter text displays with an x next to the text and applet header becomes darker with the word Filtered added (Figure 7-3).

Figure 7-3: Filtered Applet

| | | C 🕇 Filt | ered 🔅 |
|--|---------|----------|---------------|
| QI X Add | | | |
| Filter Name: Filtered | | F | Remove All |
| warfarin 🛛 simvastatin 🛇 | | | |
| Medication | Refills | Change | Last Δ |
| Simvastatin 40 MG Oral Tablet Give: 40MG PO QPM | | 1.53 | 5m |
| Warfarin Sodium 5 MG Oral Tablet Give: 5MG PO QDAY-WARF | | 1.53 | 5m |

- 5. Repeat steps 3 and 4 to continue adding filter text to the applet.
- 6. Select **Filtered** to the right of Filter Name to change the filter name.
- 7. Enter the **new filter name** and press **Enter** on the keyboard. The new filter name displays to the right of Filter Name and in the applet header (Figure 7-4).

Figure 7-4: Filter Name

| ACTIVE MEDICA | TIONS | C TTest 🗘 |
|-----------------|------------------|------------|
| Q Enter your | ext filter 🗶 Add | |
| Filter Name: Te | st | Remove All |
| warfarin 😆 | simvastatin 🛛 | |

8. Select either the **x** to the right of the filtered text to remove it from the filtered data or **Remove All** to remove all of the filtered text.

Maximize Applet Button

The **Maximize Applet** button allows users to expand the applet. The maximized view provides more detailed information for the applet. Click the **Maximize Applet** button located in the upper right corner of the applet to maximize it.

Minimize Applet Button

When viewing an applet in the maximized view, click the **Minimize** button is to return to the previous view.

Sortable Column Headers

Most applet column headers can be selected in the trend, summary, maximized, or expanded views to sort the information in ascending or descending order.

To sort a column in an applet:

- 1. Click the **column name** (e.g., **Description** or **Facility**). The list sorts in ascending order.
- 2. Click the **column name** again and the list sorts in descending order.

Manual Tile Sort

Tiles are list items displayed when working in the trend view of an applet. Some applets provide the ability to manually sort tiles by dragging and dropping them to a new location in the list. Tiles can be sorted so that the order of display is more clinically relevant to the workspace. The sorted data within the workspace persists from session to session.

Note: The tile sorting feature is available only for user-defined workspaces.

Tile sorting is available in the trend view for the following applets:

- Conditions
- Lab Results
- Medications
- Vitals

To sort a tile in the Lab Results applet (example):

1. Select the **tile** to be moved (Figure 7-5). The selected tile is highlighted.

Figure 7-5 Tile Sorting

| LAB RESULTS | | |
|---------------|-----------|------|
| 1 i 🖹 👁 | Result | Last |
| GLUCOSE | 221 mg/dL | 4m |
| UREA NITROGEN | 11 mg/dL | 4m |
| CREATININE | 1.1 mg/dL | 4m |

2. Drag and drop the **tile** to the desired location in the list.

3. Once the tile has been moved, the word *Manual* appears in the header (Figure 7-6).

Figure 7-6 Manual Tile Sorting

| LAB RESULTS | | | | |
|-------------------|-----------|------|--|--|
| Lab Test Manual 😂 | Result | Last | | |
| UREA NITROGEN | 11 mg/dL | 4m | | |
| CREATININE | 1.1 mg/dL | 4m | | |
| GLUCOSE | 221 mg/dL | 4m | | |

- 4. Repeat steps 1-4 to reorder the remaining tiles in the applet.
- 5. To delete the manual sort and revert to the default view, click the 💌 icon next to *Manual*.

Infobutton

Some applets provide context-sensitive medical information specific to certain concepts, such

as medications, immunizations, and labs. The **Infobutton** feature allows providers to better assess and treat patients.

To access the Infobutton within the Immunizations applet (example):

- 1. Click a **pill** in the Immunizations applet. A set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Infobutton** icon (Figure 7-7).
- 3. A new browser window opens that displays specific immunization information.
- 4. Close the browser window to return to the previous view.

Figure 7-7 Infobutton in the Immunizations Applet



Details Form Button

The **Details Form** button is an alternate shortcut to a detail dialog box for a selected item.

To access the detailed dialog box using the Details Form button:

- 1. Click the row of the item and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Details Form** button. The detailed dialog box opens.
- 3. Click **Close** to close the dialog and return to the previous view.

Quicklook Button

The **Quicklook** button is a shortcut to a display of detailed information for a selected item for the trend view of an applet. The last five occurrences for the selected item are displayed in list format.

To access the Quicklook box:

- 1. Click the **row of the item** and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Quicklook** button and expanded information for the selected item displays (Figure 7-8).
- 3. Click the **Quicklook** button again to close the expanded information.

| VITALS | 5 | | | | | | C | 2 |
|--------|--------------------|------------|------------|-------------|----------|---|---|---|
| i 🗄 |) 👁 | Result | | Last | | | | _ |
| BPS | -{hm | 180 m | 180 mm[Hg] | | | • | | |
| - | Date | Result | Ref. Range | | Facility | | | |
| BPD | 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | 180 mm[Hg] | 100mm[Hg] | - 210mm[Hg] | BAY | | | |
| | 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | 180 mm[Hg] | 100mm[Hg] | - 210mm[Hg] | BAY | | | |
| Pulse | 02/24/2015 - 12:17 | 180 mm[Hg] | 100mm[Hg] | - 210mm[Hg] | BAY | | | |
| | 01/29/2015 - 17:05 | 114 mm[Hg] | 100mm[Hg] | - 210mm[Hg] | TST1 | | _ | - |
| RR | 01/29/2015 - 17:05 | 114 mm[Hg] | 100mm[Hg] | - 210mm[Hg] | TST2 | | | |

Figure 7-8 Quicklook Button

Submenu Button

The **Submenu** button is available only for the Conditions applet. It lists the workspaces that are associated with the selected condition to allow for easy navigation to specific patient data.

To access the associated workspace using the Submenu button:

- 1. Select a **condition** from the Conditions applet and a set of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Submenu** button and a list of associated workspaces for that condition display (Figure 7-9).
- 3. Select the desired **workspace** to open in the Main Application Window.

CONDITIONS CT Q. Problem /Manual 🕄 Acuity Last Hx Occurrence Chronic 11y 3 i 🖹 🕗 1 Essential Hyperte 3 select Associated Workspace (Disorder) User Defined Workspace 27 Hyperlipidemia 3 User De Acute Myocardial Infarction, Unspec User Defined Workspace 49 3 Site, Episode Of Ca Unspecified ed Works

Figure 7-9 Clicking Submenu Button to List Associated Workspaces

Comment Indicators

When there is additional information about a list item, the trend, maximized, and expanded views of an applet display a Comment Indicator (Figure 7-10).

Figure 7-10 Comment Indicator



To display a comment:

- 1. Select an item with the Comment Indicator and a list of icons display.
- 2. Click the **Details Form** button and the detail dialog box displays. The comment displays at the bottom of the dialog (Figure 7-11).

| Figure 7-11 Detaile | d Comment | Information |
|---------------------|-----------|-------------|
|---------------------|-----------|-------------|

| Occasional, uncontrolle pain (ICD-9-CM 411.1) | ed chest | ↑ Previous | ♦ Next |
|--|-------------------|------------|--------|
| Primary ICD-9-CM: | 411.1 | | |
| SNOMED CT: | 25106000 | | |
| Onset: | 03/15/1996 | | |
| Acuity: | Acute | | |
| Provider: | Programmer, Twent | У | |
| Facility: | New Jersey HCS | | |
| Location: | | | |
| Entered: | 05/14/1996 | | |
| Updated: | 05/14/1996 | | |
| Comments: | | | |
| 05/14/1996 | PROGRAMMER,TWE | NTY | |
| SHERIDAN PRO | BLEM | | |
| < | | | > |
| | | | |
| | | | Close |

Chapter 8: Workspaces

About Workspaces

Workspaces represent an area of activity with specific applets that support that activity. There are two types of workspaces for eHMP v1.3: predefined and user-defined workspaces.

Predefined Workspaces

Predefined workspaces have been created to provide users with different views of patient information. These workspaces cannot be edited or deleted. The Coversheet, Timeline, Overview, Meds Review, and Documents are all predefined workspaces.

The Depression, Diabetes Mellitus, Hypertension, and Pre-Procedure workspaces are also predefined and cannot be edited or deleted. These were developed for common conditions and expose a combination of concepts, graphing, and items to support clinical management of these conditions in an efficient and safe manner.

Workspace Manager

The Workspace Manager feature allows users to add, edit, arrange and delete user-defined workspaces within the patient record.

Click the **Workspace Manager** button to open the Workspace Manager window.

The following are the elements of the Workspace Manager (Figure 8-1):

- Add New Workspace
- Workspace Filter
- Default View
- Title
- Associated Conditions
- Description
- Author
- Duplicate
- Rearrange
- Locked/Delete
- Preview
- Customize/Launch

| | | | | We | orkspace Manager | | | | | + | ٣ |
|----|-------------------------|-------------|---------|-----------------|------------------|---|---|---|---------|----------|----|
| | Title | Assoc. Cond | litions | Description | Author | | | | | | |
| ☆ | Coversheet | | 0 | | | 2 | I | • | Preview | Launch | - |
| ☆ | Overview | | 0 | | | 2 | T | • | Preview | Launch | |
| ☆ | â Timeline | • | 0 | | | 2 | T | • | Preview | Launch | |
| ☆ | Documents | • | 0 | | | | I | • | Preview | Launch | |
| ☆ | Depression CBW | • | 0 | | | 2 | I | • | Preview | Launch | |
| ☆ | 🔒 Diabetes Mellitus CBW | • | 0 | | | 2 | T | • | Preview | Launch | |
| ☆ | Hypertension CBW | | 0 | | | ත | I | • | Preview | Launch | |
| ☆ | Pre-Procedure CBW | • | 0 | | | ත | I | • | Preview | Launch | |
| \$ | Timeline Copy | | 0 4 | Add description | PANORAMA USER | ත | I | ŝ | Preview | Customiz | ze |

Figure 8-1 Workspace Manager Window

Note: A shaded row with a lock icon beside the title indicates that the workspace that cannot be edited or deleted.

Add a New Workspace

The Workspace Manager allows users to create a new, user-defined workspace that will persist from patient to patient, and session to session.

To create a user-defined workspace:

1. Click the Add New Workspace button +, to add a user-defined workspace to the workspace manager listing.

Note: Once a workspace has been added to the Workspace Manager, users can customize the new workspace.

Workspace Filter

The Workspace Filter allows users to filter the workspaces by title or description in the Workspace Manager.

To filter through the list of workspaces:

- 1. Click the **Filter** button **T**.
- 2. The Filter by title or description field displays.
- 3. Enter the desired workspace title or description.
- 4. The results populate as you type.
- 5. Click the **x** to remove the text and start a new filter.
- 6. Click the filter button again, to remove the Filter by title or description field.

Default View

The Default View icon allows users to select the workspace they want to set as their default view when they open a specific patient record. Click the **star** button 💌 to set the desired default view.

Note: The Overview workspace is the default view until another workspace has been selected.

Workspace Title

The Workspace Title field allows users to create or edit the title for a user-defined workspace. Enter or edit a workspace title in the **title field** (Figure 8-2).

| | Figure 8-2 Workspace Title Field | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|----------------------------------|--------|------|---------------------|---------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Workspace Manager | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | Title | Assoc. | Cond | litions Description | Author | | | | | | | | |
| ☆ | Coversheet | ۲ | 0 | | | | | | | | | | |
| ☆ | User Defined Workspace 25 | ۲ | 0 | Add description | PANORAMA USER | | | | | | | | |
| * | A Overview | ۲ | 0 | | | | | | | | | | |

Note: The shaded rows cannot be edited.

Associated Conditions

The Associated Conditions feature allows users to associate a concept (condition or problem) with a user-defined workspace. When a condition is associated to a workspace, users are able to select a condition in the Conditions applet and access a predefined workspace for treatment of that condition.

To add an associated condition to a workspace:

- 1. Click the Assoc. Conditions icon 🔊.
- 2. The Search Problems field displays (Figure 8-3).

| Figure 8-3 Search Problems Field |
|----------------------------------|
| |
| No Associations Added |

3. Enter a **problem** in the field. The results populate as you type (Figure 8-4).

Figure 8-4 Problems Search Results

| high | × |
|----------------|---|
| High orbit | ~ |
| Uterus high | |
| High fat diet | |
| High zinc diet | ~ |

- 4. Select the **problem** from the list.
- 5. You can add another problem by entering it in the Search Problems field, or exit by clicking anywhere **outside** of the box.
- 6. The problem is now associated with that workspace.

Workspace Description

The Description field allows users to describe a user-defined workspace. This feature is associated with the workspace filter function. Click in the **Add description** field (Figure 8-5) to add a description of the workspace.

Note: The workspace description is optional and not required.

| Workspace Manager | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------|---|-----------------|-------------|---------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Assoc. Conditions | | litions | Description | Author | | | | | |
| ۲ | 0 | | | | | | | | |
| ۲ | 0 | Add description | | PANORAMA USER | | | | | |

Figure 8-5 Workspace Add Description Field

Note: A description cannot be added to the shaded rows.

Duplicate Workspaces

Users are able to duplicate any workspace so that they can modify the cloned workspace.

To create a copy of an existing workspace:

Click the **Duplicate** icon to create a duplicated workspace. A copy of that workspace displays in the Workspace Manager list, under the duplicated workspace.
 Note: See "Customize Workspaces" for guidance on customizing a duplicated workspace.

Rearrange Workspace Listings

Users are able to rearrange their workspaces so that they can order which workspaces they would like to see listed first in the Workspace Manager and the workspace drop-down listing.

To rearrange the Workspace Manager listing:

- 1. Open the Workspace Manager.
- 2. Click the **Rearrange** icon **1**.
- 3. The selected row is highlighted.
- 4. Click and drag, or use the up and down arrow keys on the keyboard, to move the row to the desired spot.

Delete Workspaces

Users are able to delete any user-defined or duplicated workspace. Once deleted, these workspaces are no longer available.

To delete a user-defined or duplicated workspace:

- 1. Click the **Delete** icon 🔟. A confirmation message displays (Figure 8-6).
- 2. Click **Delete** to delete the workspace, or click **Cancel** to return to the Workspace Manager without deleting the workspace.

Figure 8-6 User-Defined Workspace Confirmation Message



Note: Users are not able to delete workspaces in shaded rows.

Preview Workspace

Users can preview any workspace in the Workspace Manager. The preview link displays the workspace so users can review the layout prior to launching it in the Main Application Window.

1. Click the Preview link in the Workspace Manager to open a preview of the selected workspace in a new window.

Note: The Preview functionality is not available for user-defined workspaces that have not been customized. The Preview is shaded out to indicate the link is unavailable.

- 2. The new displays the applet titles and views for the selected workspace.
- 3. Click on the X to return to the Workspace Manager.

Customize a New Workspace

Users can customize workspaces they create to enable unique experiences within the application.

To implement the customization of a new workspace:

- 1. Click the **Customize** link Customize in the Workspace Manager to open the Workspace Editor screen.
- 2. The Workspace Editor screen displays with a listing of the applets in alphabetical order.
- 3. Scroll through the applets, or enter the applet name in the **Find Applet by Name** field above the applets.
- 4. Drag and drop the desired **applet** in the CURRENT SCREEN VIEW box (Figure 8-7).

Note: Any applets outside the CURRENT SCREEN VIEW box will be included in the workspace. Use the scrollbar at the bottom of the screen to view applets outside of the box when viewing the workspace in the main application window.



Figure 8-7 Current Screen View in the User Defined Workspace Window

5. Select a View option displays (Figure 8-8). Select the desired view for that applet.

Figure 8-8 Select a View ALLERGIES - SELECT A VIEW Trend View Summary View Expanded View

- 6. A box with the applet name and view displays in the CURRENT SCREEN VIEW box.
- 7. Click and drag the **applets** to move them on the screen.
- 8. Use the **double arrows** to modify the size of the applet (Figure 8-9).

Figure 8-9 Using Double Arrows to Modify Applet Size



- 9. Click the **settings** icon 攀 to change the applet view or to delete it.
- 10. Repeat steps 3-9 until the workspace layout is complete.
- 11. Click the **DONE** button in the upper right hand corner of the screen to open the workspace in the main application window.

Note: User-defined workspaces can be edited after they have been customized.

Launch Workspaces

Once the user-defined workspace has been customized, users are able to open the workspace in the main application window using the Launch link Launch from the Workspace Manager.

Users can edit the user-defined workspace on the main application window.

To edit the user-defined workspace from the main application window:

- 1. Launch the workspace from the Workspace Manager, or from the Workspace dropdown menu.
- 2. The workspace opens in the main application window.
- 3. Click and drag the **applet** to move it on the screen.
- 4. Click the **settings** icon on the applet to select a different view, or to delete the applet.
- 5. Hover the mouse on the bottom left corner of the applet, then **click and drag** to re-size the applet.
- 6. Click the Workspace Editor icon 🛨 to add applets to the workspace.
- 7. Repeat steps 3-6 until the customization is complete.

Chapter 9: Other eHMP Features

Search Record Field

The Search Record field allows the user to search within a selected patient's record for specific information.

To search the selected patient's record:

- 1. Enter the **specific item** (i.e., medication, document, immunization) in the Search Record field.
- 2. A list of suggested terms drop down from the field as you type.
- 3. Click a suggested term, or press Enter to run the search.
- 4. The results are highlighted and presented in a new view in list format.

Patient Record Refresh and Status Bar

The Refresh Data button, Status Bar, and the eHMP Data Sources icon appear in the bottom right-hand corner of the eHMP application (Figure 9-1). The Refresh button provides the opportunity to refresh the selected patient's data for the most up-to-date information from all sources. The status bar displays the status of each repository that contributes to the aggregated data displayed in eHMP. Green bullets with check marks indicate that data is being synced from that source.

Figure 9-1 eHMP Status Bar



The repositories used to aggregate data:

- My Site: The user's current site
- All VA: All VA sites
- DoD: Department of Defense sites
- Communities: Community Health Partners of the VA

The eHMP Data Sources status screen (Figure 9-2) provides detailed information on the refresh status of data by source.

| eHMP Data Sources | | | × |
|------------------------|--------------------|--------------|-----------------|
| Source | My Site | | Refresh My Site |
| My Site | Domain | Last Refresh | New Data Since |
| New data since Current | Allergies | Current | Current |
| | Appointments | Current | Current |
| | Consult | Current | Current |
| Last refresh < Thago | CPT | Current | Current |
| New data since Current | Document | Current | Current |
| 🗢 DoD | Health Factor | Current | Current |
| Last refresh < 1h ago | Image | Current | Current |
| | Lab Results | Current | Current |
| Communities | Active Medications | Current | Current |
| Last refresh < 1n ago | Orders | Current | Current |
| | Patient | Current | Current |
| | Purpose of Visit | Current | Current |
| | Active Problems | Current | Current |
| | Surgery | Current | Current |
| | Visit | Current | Current |
| | Vitals | Current | Current |
| | | | ~ |
| Refresh All Data | | | Close |

Figure 9-2 eHMP Data Sources

To view the refresh status of patient data:

- 1. Click the **data sources** button to open a new window with the sync statuses for all sources. The new window displays the source, when the data was last refreshed, and if there is new data since the last refresh.
- 2. Click the **Source title** to view the detailed status for that source. You can refresh all data, or refresh each source individually, from this window.
- 3. Click the **Close** button to return to the current workspace.

Chapter 10: Access Control

The Access Control Workspace is a predefined workspace, developed to ease the management of all the users that access the eHMP Application, and their Permission Sets. The workspace is available only for users that have an Access Control Coordinator Permission Set, and should be accessible from the Access Control tab at the top of the page of any screen (Figure 10-1) or from the Access Control item listed in the Workspaces dropdown menu (Figure 10-2).

| Patient Selection Access Control | My Workspace | 0 | 🛎 KHAN, VIHAAN 🗸 | | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--------------|---|------------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| My Site Nationwide | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| My Site Search | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Please enter either First letter of last name and last four of social security number or generic name search | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Q Select Patient | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| My CPRS List Clinics Wards | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| eHMP version 1.3.0 | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

Figure 10-1 Access Control Tab

Figure 10-2 Access Control Item from Workspaces Dropdown

| ۹ | Patient Sele | ction 😯 Eight, In | nagepatient | Access Co | ntrol | My Workspace | | | | | | | 0 | 41 | HAN | , VIHAAN + |
|---|--------------------------|--|-------------|------------|-------|-----------------|---|----------------|------|--------------------------|--------------|-------------|----------|--------|-----|------------|
| | Eig DOE SSN Gen | nt,Imagepatient 3: 04/15/1953 (62y) : 666-06-1008 der: Male | Outp | atient PO | STIN | GS N A D F | CURRENT ER No visit set Provider: H | ICOUNTE | an | Primary Care: Unassigned | Unassigned / | Unassigned | Una | ssigne | ed | NOTES |
| | ₩ 05/12 | /2014 - 05/12/2016 | | | | | | | • | Overview - | | Search Ree | cord | | | ۵ و |
| | | EMINDERS | | 0 ? T | 21 | ENCOUNTERS | | | | Meds Review | | | 0 1 | τ | 2 | |
| | Priority | Title | Туре | Due Date | | Encounter | Last | Hx Occ | irre | Depression | | Author or \ | /erifier | | | |
| | | NIH Coronary | | | | Visits | None | 0 | | Diabetes Mellitus | | | | | | |
| | Moderate | Reminder | Advice | | ш | | | | | Hypertension | | | | | | |
| | None | Hepatitis C risk | Reminder | 11/12/2015 | P | Appointments | None | 0 | | Pre-Procedure | - 1 | | | | | |
| | None | Factor Screening | Nettininger | 10122013 | | | | | | User Defined Workspace 1 | | | | | | |
| | | Primary Care | | | | Admissions | None | 0 | | User Defined Workspace 2 | | | | | | |
| | CONDITIO | NS | | C ? T | 21 | ACTIVE & RECENT | MEDICATION | IS | | User Defined Workspace 3 | - 10 | | 0 1 | + + | 21 | |
| | Problem | Acuity L | st Hx Occur | rence | | Medication | | | Ref | Timeline | | t Lat | at . | | | |
| | Impending | | | | | Methocarbamol | 500 MG Oral | | | Documents | | No record | | | 11 | |
| | Infarction | Acute 2 | 0y 2 | | | Tablet | | | | Access Control | | no record | | | -0 | |
| | (Disorder) | - | | | | TAKE ONE TABLET | BY MOUTH 1 | | - | My Workspace | - U. | No record | | | | |

User Management Applet

The Access Control Workspace contains the User Management Applet (Figure 10-3), which allows the user to change the Permission Sets on any other users but himself.

Figure 10-3 User Management Applet

| Q Patient Selection 😯 Access Control My Workspace | 0 | ≜ K | HAN | , VI⊦ | AAN - | |
|---|---|-----|-----|-------|------------------|---|
| III Access Control + | | | | | 0 | |
| USERS FOR PANORAMA (9E7A) | | c | ? | T | × | l |
| Please fill in at least 2 of the following fields | | | | | | |
| First Name Last Name | | | | | | ļ |
| | | | | | | |
| Select Permission Set | | | | | | |
| \$ | | | | | | |
| Or enter DUZ | | | | | | |
| DUZ | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Default search results will return only users that are active in both eHMP and VistA. Select one of the following checkboxes to expand your search. | | | | | | |
| Show Inactive VistA Users | | | | | | |
| E and | | | | | | |
| Search | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| eHMP version 1.3.0 | | | | | | |

Search Form

The **Search Form** (Figure 10-4) is the initial view of the User Management Applet when the user logs in. It contains the following components:

- Title Bar
- Input Fields and Checkboxes
- Search Button

Figure 10-4 Search Form

| USERS FOR PANORAMA (9E7A) | | | 0 1 | ?τ | r x |
|---|----------------------------|---|-----|----|-----|
| Please fill in at least 2 of the following fields | | | | | |
| First Name | | Last Name | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Select Permission Set | | | | | |
| | \$ | | | | |
| Or enter DUZ | | | | | |
| DUZ | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Default search results will return only users that are active in both eHM | P and VistA. Select one of | the following checkboxes to expand your search. | | | |
| Show Inactive VistA Users | Show Inactive eHM | P Users | | | |
| Search | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Title Bar

The following components are visible on the **Title Bar**:

- Title Displays the site the search is being performed on
- Applet Buttons in the order presented in the image (top right):
 - o Refresh Button Refreshes the search in the Users Table
 - Help Button Opens the User Manual at the chapter dedicated to the User Management Applet
 - Filter Button opens/closes the filter field, and it allows filtering the results in the Users Table
 - Expand/Minimize Buttons maximizes or minimizes the applet to the Expanded or Summary View. Both views are showing the same fields and checkboxes, only their sizes differ, the former occupying the whole width of the screen.
 Note: If the Search Form is in the Summary View, then the retrieved results are going to be shown in the Summary View of the Users Table. If the Search Form is in the retrieved results are going to be shown in the retrieved results are going to be shown in the Summary View of the Users Table. If the Search Form is in the Expanded View, then the retrieved results are going to be shown in the Expanded View of the Users Table.

Input Fields and Checkboxes

The following are the input fields and checkboxes that are available on the Search Form:

- a. First Name Allows searching for users that have that specific first name.
- b. Last Name Allows searching for users that have that specific last name.
- c. Select Permission Set Allows searching for users that have a specific Permission Set that could be chosen from the list of all available Permission Sets (Figure 10-5).

Figure 10-5 Select Permission Set

| USERS FOR PANORAMA (9E7A) | | C | ? 1 | r x |
|--|--|---|-----|-----|
| Please fill in at least 2 of the following fields | | | | |
| First Name | Last Name | | | |
| | | | | |
| Select Permission Set | | | | |
| Access Control Coordinator Anesthesiologist Chief Dentist Intern Information Security Officer Lab Technician Licensed Practicing Nurse Medical Technician Medical Information Section Medical Service Officer Nurse Manager Nurse Manager Nurse Practitioner Pharmacist Physician Assistant Psychologist Radiologist Radiologist Read Access Registered Nurse Resident Scheduler Service Chief Standard Doctor Student Surgeon Transcriptionist Ward Clerk | f the following checkboxes to expand your search. IMP Users | | | |

- d. DUZ Allows searching for a user that has that specific DUZ. If there is no exact match, it will return all the users that have this DUZ as a substring.
- e. Show Inactive Vista Users Checkbox When this checkbox is checked, it allows searching for users that are inactive in the VistA system, and also meet the criteria specified in the fields above.
- f. Show Inactive eHMP Users Checkbox When this checkbox is checked, it allows searching for users that are inactive in the eHMP system, and also meet the criteria specified in the fields above.

Search Button and Performing the Search

- The Search Button becomes enabled when meeting the following criteria:
 - There is input in at least two fields out of the following: First Name, Last Name, Select Permission Set, or
 - o There is input in the DUZ field
- The Search Button will remain **disabled** until the requisite criteria are met.
- When the search is performed, three types of responses can be retrieved:
 - No users meet the criteria, in which case a warning alert will be shown. In this case the criteria is too specific.
 - The number of retrieved users exceeds 100, in which a warning alert is shown. In this case the search criteria needs to be more specific.
 - The number of retrieved users does not exceed 100. In this case, the results that are retrieved are shown in the Users Table.

The Users Table – Results View

The summary and expanded views of the **Users Table** (Figure 10-6) displays the retrieved results in a table, showing the following columns:

- VistA Status The Status can be active/inactive
- eHMP Status The Status can be active/inactive
- Last Name
- First Name
- Permission Sets A list of Permission Sets that the user has. The list can be empty as well, in which case the user gets the inactive eHMP Status.
- DUZ Unique identifier

| USERS FOR PANO | RAMA (9E7A) | | | C | ? | ₹ 2. |
|---------------------------------------|-------------|---------------|-------------|---|-----|------|
| « Back to Search Showing 9 Results | | Show Inactive | VistA Users | Show Inactive eHMP Users | | |
| VistA Status | eHMP Status | Last Name | First Name | Permission Sets | DU | z |
| active | inactive | PROVIDER | SEVENTYFOUR | | 200 | 0 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | ONE | | 200 | 01 |
| active | inactive | ZZCAMP | THREE | | 200 | 03 |
| active | inactive | ZZCAMP | TWO | | 200 | 04 |
| active | active | VEHU | FOUR | Access Control Coordinator, Anesthesiologist, Chief, Intern | 200 | 05 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | FIVE | | 200 | 06 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SIX | | 200 | 07 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SEVEN | | 200 | 08 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | NINE | | 200 | 09 |

Figure 10-6 Users Table

Filtering the Results

Users can filter through the list by clicking on the **Filter Button** at the top right of the Users Table – Results View, which brings up the filtering tool (Figure 10-7). The displayed results will be filtered based on the filter value. Filtering is done over the following columns: Last Name, First Name, Permission Sets and DUZ. Therefore, if a cell in any of the specified columns contains a value like the filter value, the correspondent result/row will be displayed. Figure 10-7 Filter Button

| USERS FOR PAN | ORAMA (9E7A) | | | | 0 ? T Z |
|------------------|--------------|--------------|---------------|---|---------|
| Q, vehu | | × 🔶 | | - | |
| « Back to Search | | Show Inactiv | e VistA Users | Show Inactive eHMP Users | |
| Showing 6 Result | ts | | | | |
| VistA Status | eHMP Status | Last Name | First Name | Permission Sets | DUZ |
| active | inactive | VEHU | ONE | | 20001 |
| active | active | VEHU | FOUR | Access Control Coordinator, Anesthesiologist, Chief, Intern | 20005 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | FIVE | | 20006 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SIX | | 20007 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SEVEN | | 20008 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | NINE | | 20009 |

Tool Bar

The tool bar (Figure 10-8) includes necessary tools for easier access to the necessary information:

- Back to Search link Allows navigation back to the Search Form
- Show Inactive Vista Users checkbox When checked, in addition to the users that were already displayed, it displays the users that are inactive in the VistA system and meet the criteria specified in the Search Form.
- Show Inactive eHMP Users checkbox When checked, in addition to the users that were already displayed, it displays the users that are inactive in the eHMP system and meet the criteria specified in the Search Form.
- Number of results Displays the number of results in the view. The number gets updated every time one of the checkboxes is checked/unchecked, or a new search is performed.

Figure 10-8 Tool Bar

| « Back to Search | Show Inactive VistA Users | Show Inactive eHMP Users |
|-------------------|---------------------------|--------------------------|
| Showing 9 Results | | |

Row Selection

Users can select any row of the Users Table to open the User Info detail view (Figure 10-9). When the User Info detail view is closed, the row remains selected (Figure 10-10).

| USERS FOR PANORAMA (| 9E7A) | | | | β ? τ 2 |
|----------------------|------------------|--------------------|-------------|-----------------------|----------------|
| « Back to Search | Show In | active VistA Users | Sho | w Inactive eHMP Users | |
| Showing 9 Results | | | | | |
| VistA Status | eHMP Status | Last Name | First Name | Permission Sets | DUZ |
| active | inactive | PROVIDER | SEVENTYFOUR | | 2000 |
| active | User | | | × | 20001 |
| active | | | | | 20003 |
| active | ON | E VEHU | VISTA: ACTI | /E | 20004 |
| active | | el | eHMP: INAC | TIVE | 20005 |
| active | | | | | 20006 |
| active | | | | | 20007 |
| active | User Information | | | | 20008 |
| active | | | | | 20009 |
| | First Name | ONE | | | |
| | Last Name | VEHU | | | |
| | Permission Sets | None | | | |
| | rennission sets | None | or . | | |
| | Facility | PANORAMA | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| 1 | | | | | |

Figure 10-9 Row Selection: User Info Detail View

Figure 10-10 Row Selection

| USERS FOR PANORAMA (9 | E7A) | | | C ? ` | | | |
|-----------------------|---------------------------|-----------|-------------|--------------------------|-------|--|--|
| « Back to Search | Show Inactive VistA Users | | Show | Show Inactive eHMP Users | | | |
| Showing 9 Results | | | | | | | |
| VistA Status | eHMP Status | Last Name | First Name | Permission Sets | DUZ | | |
| active | inactive | PROVIDER | SEVENTYFOUR | | 2000 | | |
| active | inactive | VEHU | ONE | | 20001 | | |
| active | inactive | ZZCAMP | THREE | | 20003 | | |
| active | inactive | ZZCAMP | TWO | | 20004 | | |
| active | inactive | VEHU | FOUR | | 20005 | | |
| active | inactive | VEHU | FIVE | | 20006 | | |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SIX | | 20007 | | |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SEVEN | | 20008 | | |
| active | inactive | VEHU | NINE | | 20009 | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |

User Info Detail View

The User Info detail view (Figure 10-11) contains details about the selected user, such as:

- Last Name
- First Name
- VistA Status The Status can be "active" or "inactive"

- eHMP Status The Status can be "active" or "inactive". The Status changes to "active" as soon as the user gets at least one Permission Set, and to "inactive" when all the Permission Sets have been removed.
- Permission Sets The list of Permission Sets has assigned to the user. The list can be empty, which displays "inactive" for the eHMP Status, and the Permission Sets display **None**.

Figure 10-11 User Info Detail View

| User | | | × |
|------------------|----------|---------------------------------|---|
| | E VEHU | VISTA: ACTIVE eHMP: INACTIVE | |
| User Information | | | |
| First Name | ONE | | |
| Last Name | VEHU | | |
| Permission Sets | None | 1 | |
| Facility | PANORAMA | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

Edit User's Permission Sets

The User Info Detail View provides the ability to edit the existent Permission Sets, by clicking on the Pencil Button next to the Permission Sets field (Figure 10-12), which will open the Permission Sets Selection View.

Figure 10-12 Edit User's Permission Sets



Permission Sets Selection Form

The Permission Sets Selection Form (Figure 10-13) provides the ability to assign new Permission Sets to-, or remove existent Permission Sets from- the selected user.

Figure 10-13 Permission Sets Selection Form

| Select Permission Sets for User: VEHU, ON | E | | × |
|---|-----|------------------------------|-------|
| Available Permission Sets | | Selected Permission Sets | |
| Filter Permission Sets | | No Permission Sets selected. | Τ |
| Access Control Coordinator | Add | | |
| Anesthesiologist | Add | | |
| Chief | Add | | |
| Dentist | Add | | |
| Intern | Add | | |
| Information Security Officer | Add | THE | |
| | | l otal Selecto | 3d: 0 |
| | | Cancel Sa | ve |

The following are the components available on the Permission Sets Selection Form:

- Title Bar Contains the name of the selected user
- Available Permission Sets Column Shows all the possible Permission Sets that a user can have
- Selected Permission Sets Column Shows the Permission Sets that are already assigned to the selected user
- Total Selected Displays number of Permission Sets
- Save Button Assigns the new selected Permission Sets to the selected user
- Cancel Button Cancels any change that has been performed

To edit a user's Permission Set using the Permission Sets Selection Form:

- 1. Enter the **desired Permission Set** in the *Filter Permission Sets* field as shown in Figure 10-14.
- 2. Click on **Add** to select a Permission Set for the user.

Figure 10-14 Filter Permission Sets

| Select Permission Sets for User: VEHU, ONE | | × |
|--|-----|------------------------------|
| Available Permission Sets | | Selected Permission Sets |
| acc | | No Permission Sets selected. |
| Access Control Coordinator | Add | |
| Read Access | Add | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | Total Selected: 0 |
| | | Cancel Save |

3. Click on Remove to remove a selected Permission Set from the user (Figure 10-15).

| rigore 10-15 Kennove Delected i ennission Det | Figure 10-15 | Remove | Selected | Permission Set |
|---|--------------|--------|----------|-----------------------|
|---|--------------|--------|----------|-----------------------|

| Select Permission Sets for User: VEHU, ONE | | | |
|--|--------|----------------------------|-------------------|
| Available Permission Sets | | Selected Permission Sets | |
| Filter Permission Sets | | Access Control Coordinator | Remove |
| Access Control Coordinator | Remove | Anesthesiologist | Remove |
| Anesthesiologist | Remove | - | |
| Chief | Add | | |
| Dentist | Add | | |
| Intern | Add | | |
| Information Security Officer | Add | | Total Selected: 2 |
| | | | Cancel |

- 4. Click on the **Save Button** to assign the new Selected Permission Sets to the selected user, and remove previously assigned Permission Sets that were removed from the Selected Permission Sets column.
- 5. Click on the **Cancel Button** to cancel any change that has been performed.
- 6. After saving or canceling the new Permission Sets, the User Info Detail View is presented again, reflecting the changed Permission Sets and eHMP Status as shown in Figure 10-16.

Figure 10-16 Updated User Info Detail View

| Use | er | | | × |
|-----|-----------------|----------------------------|-------------------------------|---|
| | Ser Information | E VEHU | VISTA: ACTIVE eHMP: ACTIVE | |
| _ | | | | |
| | First Name | ONE | | |
| | Last Name | VEHU | _ | |
| | Permission Sets | Access Control Coordinator | | |
| | | Anesthesiologist | | |
| | Facility | PANORAMA | _ | |
| | | | | |

After closing the User Info Detail View, the new Permission Sets and eHMP Status can be seen in the selected user row of the Users Table – Results View as shown in Figure 10-17.

| USERS FOR PANORAMA (9E7A) | | | | | ? T 🖍 |
|--|-------------|-------------|----------------|---|-------|
| « Back to Search Show Showing 9 Results | | Show Inacti | ve VistA Users | Show Inactive eHMP Users | |
| VistA Status | eHMP Status | Last Name | First Name | Permission Sets | DUZ |
| active | inactive | PROVIDER | SEVENTYFOUR | | 2000 |
| active | active | VEHU | ONE | Access Control Coordinator, Anesthesiologist | 20001 |
| active | inactive | ZZCAMP | THREE | | 20003 |
| active | inactive | ZZCAMP | TWO | | 20004 |
| active | active | VEHU | FOUR | Access Control Coordinator, Anesthesiologist, Chief, Intern | 20005 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | FIVE | | 20006 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SIX | | 20007 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | SEVEN | | 20008 |
| active | inactive | VEHU | NINE | | 20009 |

Figure 10-17 Updated Users Table – Results View

Alerts

There are multiple alerts that could be retrieved, which generally are grouped in three categories: Notifications, Warnings and Info. The alerts show up at the top of the panel in which the action is performed, like in the example below (Figure 10-18).

Figure 10-18 Alerts

| USERS FOR PANORAMA (9E7A) | | 0 ? T × |
|--|---|---------|
| Error Retrieving Users | | × |
| No users met the selected search criteria. Search criteria may need to be | updated. Users may be inactive in VistA, eHMP, or both. | |
| Please fill in at least 2 of the following fields | | |
| First Name | Last Name | |
| | | |
| Select Permission Set | | |
| | <u>↓</u> | |
| Or enter DUZ | | |
| DUZ | | |
| 2000 | | |
| Default search results will return only users that are active in both eHMP a | nd VistA. Select one of the following checkboxes to expand your search. | |
| Show Inactive VistA Users | Show Inactive eHMP Users | |
| Search | | |

Notifications

Notifications are used to notify the user of an action that just happened and the action was successful, for example, successfully updating the user's Permission Sets (Figure 10-19 and 10-20).

Figure 10-19 Notification: Permission Set Successfully Modified



Figure 10-20 Notification: Permission Set Successfully Modified - eHMP Inactive User



Warnings

Warnings are used to notify users of an action that just happened, and the action was unsuccessful. Below are examples of system warnings.

• Too many results retrieved (Figure 10-21).

Figure 10-21 Warning: Too Many Results



• Not retrieving users because of different causes (Figures 10-22, 10-23, 10-24, and 10-25).

Figure 10-22 Error Retrieving Users: Inactive Users in VistA, eHMP, or Both



Figure 10-23 Error Retrieving Users: Inactive Users in eHMP



Figure 10-24 Error Retrieving Users: Inactive Users in VistA



Figure 10-25 Error Retrieving Users: Spelling



 Not being able to edit or remove the user Permissions or Permission Sets because of different causes (Figures 10-26, 10-27, 10-28, and 10-29).

Figure 10-26 Error Editing Permissions: Not Allowed to Remove Permission



Figure 10-27 Error Editing Permission Sets: Not Allowed to Remove Permission Set



Figure 10-28 Error Editing Permission Sets: Conditional Removing of a Permission Set



Figure 10-29 Error Editing Permissions or Permission Sets



Info Alerts

Info Alerts are used to notify users of an action that just happened, and the users need to be acknowledged of related information (Figure 10-30).

Figure 10-30 Info Alerts

